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SHIRE COUNCIL

Special Council Meeting

Council Chambers
Date: 26/10/2016
Time: 9:00am

AGENDA

THE ORDINARY MEETING OF THE MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL WILL BE HELD AT COUNCIL
CHAMBERS, ON WEDNESDAY, 26 OCTOBER 2016 AND THE ATTENDANCE OF EACH
COUNCILLOR IS REQUESTED.

PETER FRANKS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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ORDER OF BUSINESS

MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE

APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE/ABSENCE ON COUNCIL BUSINESS
BEREAVEMENTS/CONDOLENCES

DECLARATION OF ANY MATERIAL PERSONAL INTERESTS/CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES.......ooiiieeeceeee e

GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE .....coitiiiiiiiiiiii it
ITEM-1 Council Report - Draft MSC Annual Report 2015-2016............coevvveiiiiiiiiiiiiieennnnn.

BUSINESS WITHOUT NOTICE.......coiiiiiiiii
NEXT MEETING OF COUNCIL ..covttitiiiieiciieeei ettt e e e e
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CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE

ITEM-1 COUNCIL REPORT - DRAFT MSC ANNUAL REPORT
2015-2016

MEETING: Special

MEETING DATE: 26 October 2016

REPORT OFFICER’S

TITLE: Manager Development & Governance

DEPARTMENT: Corporate and Community Services

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Local Government Regulation 2012 requires that each local government must prepare
an annual report for each financial year and must adopt the annual report within one (1)
month after the day the Auditor-General gives the Auditor-General's audit report about the
local government's financial statements for the financial year to the local government.

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION

"That Council adopt the Draft Annual Report for the 2015/16 Financial Year."

BACKGROUND

Council is required by section 182 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 to prepare and
adopt an annual report. Adoption of the annual report is required within one (1) month of
receiving the Auditor-General's final sign off of the audited annual financial statements. This
year, the annual statements were signed off by the Auditor-General on 11 October 2016
meaning that adoption is required by 11 November 2016.

LINK TO CORPORATE PLAN

GOV - Sound decision-making based on the understanding and confidence of the
community, reflected in responsible long-term financial sustainability and clear strategic
direction built around core local government business and affordable levels of service.

CONSULTATION

Internal
Mayor
Chief Executive Officer
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Director Corporate and Community Services
Manager Finance

External
Queensland Audit Office

LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS (STATUTORY BASIS, LEGAL AND RISKS)

Preparation of an annual report is a requirement of the Local Government Act 2009 and the
Local Government Regulation 2012.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Nil
FINANCIAL & RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Capital
Nil

Operating
Nil

Is the expenditure noted above included in the 2015/2016 budget?
N/A

If not you must recommend how the budget can be amended to accommodate the
expenditure

N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COMMUNICATION

The annual report will be made available to the community through placement on Council's
website.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Annual Report for the 2015/16 Financial Year

Date Prepared: 19 October 2016
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1. OUR VISION AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES

OUR VISION

“A growing and confident Shire, comprised of diverse communities who share common values of a
relaxed lifestyle and respect for the beauty of the natural environment of the region.”

It is the Council's mission to preserve the values expressed in its vision by:

Creating the foundations for a strong and financially sustainable future for the Shire.
Responsible and accountable decision-making.

Cost-effective service provision.

Community capacity building through collaborative partnerships.

OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES

In delivering services to our community, we will be guided by the following corporate values and

principles:

. We will keep the fact that "the community are our customers" in the forefront of every decision
and action we take.

. We will work together as a united team using the skills and experience of all staff while recognising

the value of a diverse workforce and actively supporting the principles of equal employment
opportunity.

. Our staff will be empowered to make decisions in their own areas of authority, knowing that they
will be supported when they do so.

. We will always strive to improve Council's service and enthusiastically pursue innovative ways of
doing so.

. We will always take a whole of Council approach, with every decision being made on the basis of
what is best for the whole organisation.

. We will share information throughout the organisation using vigorous and open communication.

. We will involve all of our fellow staff members in the decision making process, with managers

providing coaching, support and leadership.

Page 4
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2.  SHIRE PROFILE

The Mareeba Shire regained its former status as a stand-alone local government after
being de-amalgamated from the Tablelands Regional Council on 1 January 2014.
Forced amalgamations in March 2008 saw the Shire amalgamated with the other

Tablelands shires of Atherton, Eacham and Herberton, however, a successful

referendum in March 2013 gave the green light from the Queensland State

Government for the de-amalgamation.

The Shire services a population of approximately
21,833 and covers an area of 53,457 km?. It stretches
across the base of Cape York Peninsula and westwards
from the coastal escarpment behind Cairns. The

altitude of the Tablelands region moderates the
tropical climate which means that the Shire enjoys
cool dry winters and warm, wet summers

The Shire is located within close proximity to two World Heritage Areas and is less

than an hour's drive to Cairns International Airport. Mareeba, the main population

centre, lies 64 kms south west of Cairns. Kuranda, with the Kuranda Scenic Railway

and Skyrail Cableway, brings up to a million visitors to the Shire each year. The Shire

is a popular destination for Grey Nomads who hold an annual Christmas in July event
at Mareeba.

The main population centres are:
Mareeba
Kuranda
Dimbulah
Mt Molloy
Julatten
Chillagoe

‘

The Shire is rich in mineral resources including gold, lead, zinc and other base metals,

tungsten, copper sulphate, tin, perlite, imestone, marble and slate. The historic

mining town of Chillagoe, with its limestone caves and amazing rock formations, is a
must see on any tourist's agenda.

The economy of the Shire relies heavily on agricultural
production including a large range of animal industries
and production of both tropical and subtropical crops.
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Mareeba is positioning itself as an industrial hub in Far North Queensland with the
development of the Mareeba Industrial Park which has the land availability for
significant expansion in the future. The further development of the Mareeba Airport
will also help fuel sustained economic growth into the future.

With its natural beauty, mild tropical climate,
economic diversity and proximity to Cairns, the
Mareeba Shire continues to be a lifestyle destination of
choice for many "tree changers", mobile digital
professionals and business operators, fly in/fly out
workers and their families, and "Cairns commuters"
who work in Cairns but choose to live in the Mareeba
Shire.
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3. MAYOR'S REPORT

It is with a deep sense of satisfaction that | compose this, the
second annual report of the Mareeba Shire Council. This past
year has been one of consolidation of previous decisions
made, and continuing to build firm foundations for the future.

Quadrennial Local Government elections were held in March,

and along with many other shires there were a number of
changes to the council. We saw the retirement of long
standing councillor Jennifer Jensen. Allan Holmes and Karen Ewin who had been councillors through the whole
of the de-amalgamation process were not returned. | take this opportunity to pay tribute to their contribution
and dedication to the task and wish them well for the future.

New Councillors Kevin Davies, Angela Toppin and Lenore Wyatt have come to the table with enthusiasm and a
real sense of purpose. They will undoubtedly complement the efforts of the continuing Councillors; Deputy
Mayor Alan Pedersen, Nipper Brown and Mary Graham. | look forward to working with them as part of our
Council for the next four years.

The budget which we delivered in June contained an increase of three and a half percent for all rates and
charges, ensuring the continued repair of the shire's budget position following de-amalgamation from the
Tablelands Regional Council. We are now able to return a modest amount each year to our depleted reserves,
to safeguard the council from future economic shocks. This budget provides for a continuation of the capital
works programme which is now well established, as well as our commitment to scheduled maintenance of our
extensive road network.

During this past year we have delivered new bridges, built to main roads standard over the Walsh River and
Grove Creek. We have obtained grant funding to continue the upgrade of the Kuranda water supply with the
installation of two half mega-litre reservoirs at Mason Road and Hilltop Close. Further, the waste water
treatment plant in Kuranda has had a major upgrade.

It is pleasing to note that the local economy is healthy and that the level of confidence, as recorded by the
number and value of building permits issued, is high. The Council's commitment to, and support for business,
with attention to detail and prompt the response to applications is well regarded by our business community.

Investment in the Mareeba Industrial Estate is at an all-time high, demonstrating confidence in the future of
the shire's agricultural industries. This estate is quickly becoming a major freight hub for the shire and for the
Cape York Peninsula Region.

In last year's report, | made mention of two major projects which were on the horizon-the refurbished
Mareeba Waste Water Treatment Plant and the redevelopment of the Mareeba Aerodrome. Those projects
are now well under way, with planning at an advanced stage and a number of contracts in place.

This report would not be complete without a tribute to the amazing, hardworking staff of the Mareeba Shire.
Every member of the staff shows commitment and pride in their work, on a daily basis. Nothing could, or
would be achieved without the culture of dedication which prevails within the organisation.

Lastly, | thank the council for their hard work and careful consideration of the sometime complex issues, which
confront them on a regular basis.
Tom Gilmore

MAYOR
Page 7
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4, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REVIEW

The 2015/16 financial year has seen the continuation of the
building of a successful, cohesive forward looking Council.
The benefits of the Service Level Review conducted and
implemented in the previous financial year are now being

felt and are reflected in this year's positive financial
statements.

These changes have reaffirmed the sound financial position the Council sees itself in. While Council will
always face tight financial constraints, given the size of the population and the large area, it is well
positioned for the future.

The organisation is committed to constantly seek efficiencies so as to improve our capacity to deliver the
services the community require while at the same time limiting rate increase. All vacancies are carefully
scrutinised before they are filled to ensure the organisation is kept as lean as possible.

The long awaited Mareeba Sewerage Treatment Plant and Mareeba Airport upgrade works have now
commenced and both of these projects are scheduled for completion in 2017. These projects are critical
to enhance the Shire's long term economic growth and were made possible by significant State and
Federal Governments contributions.

A number of other projects have been undertaken in this financial year. These included two new bridges
and the new Kuranda Library and Customer Service Centre, in the Kuranda Community Precinct, offering

that community a first class facility and an anchor for the further development of the precinct.

Considerable effort has been put into Council's Workplace Health and Safety system and staff are to be
congratulated on their efforts in taking the organisation well beyond the Local Government benchmark
and receiving a Silver Status Award. Not only does this represent a much safer working environment but
will also assist in saving ratepayer dollars by reducing premiums.

I would like to thank the staff for their ongoing efforts to deliver quality service to the community. They
are a dedicated enthusiastic workforce and a pleasure to work with.

| would also like to thank the Councillors, from both the present and previous Councils for their clear
leadership and support. As a unified team we are proudly delivering for our Community.

Peter Franks

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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5. CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
DEPARTMENT ANNUAL REVIEW

Jennifer McCarthy
Director Corporate & Community Services

The Corporate and Community Services department
comprises five separate Groups or functional areas of
Council as follows:

e Finance (which includes Stores, Depots, Payroll,
Financial Accounting, Management Accounting)

e  Development & Governance (which includes
Governance and Compliance, Local Laws,
Environmental Health, Building and Plumbing,
Planning)

e  Systems & Customer Service (which includes Records,
Customer Service, Information and Communication
Technology, Business Systems)

e  Human Resources (which includes HR Management,
Workforce Management, Training and Development,
Workplace Health and Safety)

e  Community Wellbeing (which includes Libraries,
Community Development and Engagement,
Community Support Services, Tourism Promotion,
Grants Development, Community Grants, Community
Housing for Seniors Service)

Key achievements or highlights of the 2015/16 financial

year include:

Finance

e  Preparation and adoption of 2016/17 budget

e  Preparation and finalisation of financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2016

e  Assisted other areas of Council to adhere to 2015/16
budget, resulting in achieving overall budget result

e  Continued development of the works and assets
system to assist in improving efficiencies and
understanding of costs for decision making

e  Continued development of asset registers to assist in
improved asset management plans

e Review of all fees and charges

e  Continued system enhancement and key user training
in financial systems

Development & Governance

A new planning scheme was finalised and adopted on
June 15 2016

$15.6M worth of buildings under construction after
Mareeba Industrial Land Sales

A total of 104 new allotments created through
Reconfiguring of a Lot applications, including 49 lots of
the Chillagoe Industrial Park

The total value of all building approvals for the
2015/16 financial year was $59.8M, with a 22%
increase in the number of building applications
Refinement of delegations and appointments process
throughout the organisation

Review of Council's Risk in relation to business
continuity and Risk Treatment Plans to reduce
downtime and loss during weather events

Council advertised 11 lots for sale by tender at the
Chillagoe Industrial Estate. All were sold except 3,
which are subject to an offer of purchase

Systems and Customer Service

Performed upgrade of Council’s EDRMS (Electronic
Document and Record Management System)
Implemented integrated mapping services with asset
management system

Assisted in the relocation of the Kuranda Service
Centre and Library to the Kuranda Community Precinct
Continued support for water meter AMR (Automatic
Meter Reading) rollout project

Extended existing public WiFi network coverage to
include the Tourism Kuranda facility

Performed refresh of Water and Waste Water SCADA
server fleet

Assisted in the migration of CCTV system from
Mareeba Police Station to Rankin Street Data centre
Implemented on premise cloud storage solution
(OwnCloud). Migrated the delivery of electronic
Council meeting agendas to this system

Provided ICT support to the Mareeba Sewerage
Treatment Plant project

Performed review of Council’s Web Site to ensure
compliance with RTI/IP obligations in response to OIC
audit

Initiated the construction of a mausoleum wall at the
Mareeba New cemetery

R T
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Community Wellbeing

Relocated the Kuranda Library and Customer Service
Centre to new premises at the Kuranda Community
Precinct

Transitioned the Mareeba Heritage Centre and
government funded community support services to
community management to continue to strengthen
community and business organisations

Coordinated successful grant applications for
$9,841,291 of government funding for projects and
services including essential infrastructure, community
support, community facilities, library resources,
multicultural festival, arts and cultural development
and community disaster management

Partnered with Community to conduct festivals and
community events, celebrate and promote the shire's
heritage, arts and cultural assets, support
environmental activities, clean up and look after
community facilities, reduce mobile phone black spots,
reduce graffiti, homelessness, and youth crime,
ensure support for people with mental health issues
and vulnerable families, and conduct sporting and
recreational activities to enhance community
wellbeing

Expanded the Mareeba Industrial Park attracting new
investors and businesses

Promoted the tourism attractions and experiences of
the Mareeba Shire, attracting 10% more visitors to
Visitor Information Centres than 2014/15

Human Resources

Employee-based Enterprise Agreement implemented
across Council work sites

Delivery of significant 'in house' training programs to
ensure compliance with legislative requirements and
improvements in productivity and employee skills, in
an effective and cost efficient manner

Focused management of employee leave entitlements
resulted in a further 10% reduction in excess annual
leave balances, down 85% from June 2014 and a 14%
reduction in excess long service |eave accruals
Implemented new Performance Appraisal System for
Award based employees aimed at improving
communication between workers and supervisors with
performance issues identified and resolved early

Drug and Alcohol Policy implemented including a
random testing regime

Continuous review and improvement of WHS
management system resulted in further improvement
in the audit rating to 76%, up from 69%. Recognised by
LGW with silver rating award

IR T .
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6.
REVIEW

INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES DEPARTMENT ANNUAL

Val Shannon
Acting Director Infrastructure Services

The Infrastructure Services department comprises three

separate Groups or functional areas of Council as follows:

e Works (which includes Transport Infrastructure, Bridge
Construction and Maintenance, Parks and Gardens,
Land Protection, Cemeteries)

e Technical Services (which includes  NDRRA
Management, RMPC Management, Technical Support,
Fleet and Workshop, Land and Facilities

e Water and Waste (which includes Waste
Management; Wastewater (Sewerage) Treatment,
Operations and Reticulation, Water Treatment,
Operations and Reticulation)

Key achievements or highlights of the 2015/16 financial

year include:

Works

Transport Infrastructure Section

Capital Works

. Mclver Road Mareeba - Rehabilitate, widen and seal
to 6.5m wide

. Mclver Road Mareeba - Widen existing causeway and

pavement to Tilse Street

Brickley Street Dimbulah- Bitumen seal

Chewko Road, Mareeba - Widen and seal

Tyrconnell Road, Arriga - Widen and seal

Kay Road - Widen and seal crests

High Chapparal Road, Kuranda - Intersection upgrade

Monaro Close, Kuranda - Intersection upgrade

Ray Road, Mareeba - Widen and seal

Koah Road, Koah - Widen and seal

Stanton Road, Arriga - Rehabilitate, widen and seal

Cobra Rd, Mareeba - Widen and seal

Coronet Drive, Mareeba - Drainage improvement

Sunbird Parade, Mareeba - Concrete drain

Chillagoe Aerodrome - Reseal airstrip

Kowrowa - Replace Bus Shelter

Therwine Street, Kuranda - Underground power

conduit

. Walsh Street, Mareeba - Arnold Park bus stop

Transport Infrastructure Section

Capital Works Continued

. Kennedy Highway, Kuranda - Bus stop

. Cater Road, Mareeba - Bus parking improvement

. Public toilets car park, Dimbulah - Disability car park and
ramp

. Mareeba Swimming Pool - Car park extension

Lawson Street/Lyons Street/James Street,

footpath extension

Raleigh Street, Dimbulah - Footpath extension

Mary Andrews Park Footpath Installation, Mareeba

Anzac Ave/Durston St, Mareeba - Drainage improvements

Sunbird Park, Mareeba - Extend concrete footpath

Bicentennial Lakes, Mareeba - Footpath Renewal

Kuranda Cemetery - Lawn beam extension

Speewah Road, Speewah - Grove Creek Bridge approaches

Mareeba -

Maintenance

. $3,153,738 - Road Maintenance

. 19% - Roadside Vegetation Management
. 43% - Grading Unsealed Road

Bridge Section

Capital Work

. Speewah Road, Speewah - Renewal of Grove Creek Bridge
. Springmount Road, Arriga - Walsh River Bridge upgrade

Maintenance

. $375,024 Bridge Maintenance
. 53% Preventative Maintenance
. 11% Bridge Inspections

Page 11
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Parks and Garden Section

Capital Works

. Byrnes St, Mareeba - Irrigation upgrade
Centenary Park, Kuranda - Soft-fall renewal
Centenary Park, Mareeba - Soft-fall renewal
Mutchilba Hall Park - Sand replenishment

Hall Park, Dimbulah - Soft-fall renewal
Kuranda/Chillagoe/Dimbulah/Mt Molloy/Mareeba -
Christmas Decorations upgrade

Chillagoe Hall, Chillagoe - Playground upgrade
Dog Off Leash Area, Mareeba

Sunbird Park, Mareeba - Extend concrete footpath
Kuranda Recreation Centre - Park Upgrade

Maintenance

. $1,580,989 Parks and Gardens Maintenance

. 22% General Repairs and Maintenance

. 17% Mowing

. 7% Slashing

. 6% Tree Clearing and Vegetation Management
Water and Waste

The following capital works projects were undertaken
during the 12 month period:

Mareeba

Installed Automated Water Meter Readers (AMR) and
water meter installations program complete except for
73 difficult installations

Mareeba Wastewater Treatment Plant Design and
Construction Contract awarded to Downer Utilities
Australia P/L. Initial site clearing began May 2016
Mareeba Wastewater Treatment Plant Inlet Works due
for completion Jan 2017

Mareeba Wastewater Treatment Plant Rising Main to
site

Refurbishment of the Sewer Pump Stations

Final stage of Historian (SCADA) Project

Mareeba Landfill erosion and sediment control works
Mareeba Landfill additional Groundwater Wells
installed

Mareeba Water Reticulation Standpipe Management
System

Kuranda

The SCADA and Telemetry Network Installation
Mutchilba & Julatten

Concrete lined bunding area completed at Waste
Transfer Stations

Technical Services

e  Provided survey, design and soil testing services for a
number of capital works projects including:

Keegan St, Mareeba Industrial Estate

Pavement construction for the connection of

Martin Tenni Drive and Gowan Street

Therwine Street, Kuranda - Landscaping

works

Mareeba Aerodrome - Proposed upgrades to

external roads, services and lease areas -

$13M

Mareeba Sporting Precinct - Development of

a Sporting Precinct at Davies park

Glynn Street, Dimbulah - Construction of a

concrete kerb ramp to existing footpath for

disability access

Butler Drive and Saddle Mountain Road

Intersection, Kuranda - Reconfiguration of

existing intersection

Provided Project Management services for the delivery

of the bitumen reseal program

Delivered the $2.16M Road Maintenance Performance

Contract (RMPC) for the Department of Transport and

Main Roads

Purchased new Motorola UHF radios as part of an

upgrade of the council's mobile UHF radio system

Purchased the Bigmate Fleet Management System

including the installation of the initial 63 Syrus GPS

trackers and 23 Sat com units

(o]

le]

Works undertaken on Council's facilities included:

Julatten boardwalk - replaced boardwalks and renovated
existing bird hide

Julatten Geraghty Park Hall - repainted, relayed pavers,
cleaned tennis courts, landscaping

Julatten Rural Fire Brigade - new concrete pad and new
22.5kl water tank

Mareeba Davies Park - replaced electrical cables to field 1
and 2, replaced existing timber pole on field 2 with new
metal poles, installed new electrical switchboard to service
both playing fields and the new netball/basketball courts.
Kuranda Recreation Centre - part roof replacement and
guttering

Mareeba Arnold Park Electricity Upgrade - upgraded and
installed new electrical switchboard; installed sub board
with power outlets

Dimbulah Hall - part roof replacement and guttering

Mt Molloy Tennis Courts - power upgrade

Mareeba PCYC Shire Hall - replaced sub board

Page 12
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Land Protection Section

Top Priority Weeds: Miconia species, Mikania vine,
Kosters curse, and Limnocharis are being tackled in
partnership with Biosecurity Qld. These are rainforest
invaders and are a serious threat to our tropical forests
and Wet Tropics areas

Gamba Grass: Maintained the protection of the Walsh
and Mitchell River catchments of this invasive high
biomass grass. Contained infestations on the eastern
watercourses

Targeted Pest Plants: Include; Rats Tail Grass,
Thunbergia spp, Sicklepod, Parthenium Weed, Giant
Sensitive Plant and Aquatic Plant Pests. All these plants
were targeted under Council's Biosecurity Plan. They
were removed or contained from council roads, parks,
easements, and waste transfer stations. Council
partnered with our rate payers and provided up to
date information on control options, property pest
planning and prevention of weed seed spread. Council
provided advice and public education at field days,
workshops, at shows and via the media

Belly Ache Bush, Rubber Vine and other Jatropha
species: A staged and strategic removal program was
undertaken on the Upper Walsh River catchment.
Council worked in conjunction with affected
landowners, catchment management groups, Natural
Resource Management organisations and Biosecurity

Land Protection Section continued

Siam Weed: This invasive plant pest has been labelled
by world scientists as "The World's Worst Weed". It
has appeared on a major feeder creek system of the
Walsh River. A major removal job was run by Council,
our landowners, Biosecurity Staff and Catchment
Management to prevent it's spread down through the
catchment
Tramp Ants: Electric Ants and Yellow Crazy ants were
targeted for eradication by Council, Landowners and
partners - Biosecurity Qld, Wet Tropics Management
Authority and Kuranda Envirocare
Vertebrate Pests:

o Rabbits were managed with poison baits,

burrow fumigating, trapping and by
introducing the Rabbit Haemorrhagic Disease
Virus

o  Feral pig controls included, trapping,

shooting, hunting, poisoning. All the above
technologies were implemented by Council,
community pig trapping organisations and by
our ratepayers

o Wild dog/dingo controls included a
coordinated baiting approach taken by
Council and affected landowners. In the
many places that baiting is not applicable;
hunters were used along with trapping and
shooting
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7.

SOME KEY STATISTICS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2015 TO 30 JUNE 2016

Planning and Development
e  Total development applications received - 77
Building
e  Total building approvals issued - 377
e Number of dwellings approved - 135
e  Total value of building approvals $59,890,893
Local Laws
e Total Penalty Infringement Notices issued - 1,074
e Total complaints/enquiries responded to -
1,606{Local Laws)
e Total complaints/enquiries
1,057(Regulatory Support)
e Total animals impounded - 677
s  Total dogs registered at 30 June 2016 - 2,460
Environmental Health
e  Total complaints/enquiries responded to - 368
e  Total licensed premises inspected -
o Food 282
o Accommodation 16
o Personal Appearance 2
Human Resources
e Total number of full time equivalent (FTE)
employees at 30 June 2016 - 211.4
e  Male employees as a percentage of total - 64%
. Female employees as a percentage of total - 36%
e Indoor employees (FTE) as a percentage of total -

responded to -

46%

¢ QOutdoor employees (FTE) as a percentage of total
-54%

e Number of employees (FTE) per 100 residents -
1.02

e  Total staff training hours attended - 4,953

. Number of WHS incident reports - 45

¢  Total work days lost through injury - 96

Customer and Community

e  Total site visits (sessions) - Council's website -
87,371

e  Total number of website pages viewed - 209,079

. Customer Requests created - 13,313

. Call Centre calls handled - 18,640

ICT/Records

e Total number of PCs/Laptops maintained - 200
Total amount of data stored - 27TB

L]

e |CT helpdesk requests resolved - 1,396

¢  Total documents registered in Records System -
71,192

Libraries

e Total items loaned - 93,682

e Total visitors to libraries - 87,483

e  Total volunteer hours - 2080

Visitor Information Centres

. Total visitor numbers 129,231

e  Total volunteer hours worked - 16,361

Grants Development
e  Total successful infrastructure grant applications:

$8,268,000

e  Total successful community grant applications:
$1,573,291

Insurance

e  Total motor vehicle claims lodged - 13

e Number of potential public liability claims
reported to insurer - 23

Rating and Property

e Total number of rateable properties - 9,806

e Total rateable value of Shire - $1,514,524,768

e Total rate levy 2015/16 - $28,137,961

[ Rate arrears as at 30 June 2016 - $1,607,124

Water

e Total volume of treated water supplied - 3,145.61
ML

e Total length of water mains - 241.960km

e Total number of water connections - 5,245

Sewerage

e Total volume of sewage treated -
Mareeba and 678.518 ML Kuranda

e Total quantity of effluent discharged - 770 ML
Mareeba and 678.518 ML Kuranda

e Total length of sewer mains - 134.28 kms

¢  Total number of household connections - 3,709

Waste

e  Total volume of waste disposed of at Mareeba
landfill - 74,499 tonnes

e Total tonnage of recyclable materials collected -
1,319 tonnes (made up of: 30T tyres; 37T oil; 36T
batteries; 1,109T steel; 106T mixed recyclable
material - including plastic, steel and aluminium
cans and glass bottles)

e  Total volume of green waste processed - 5,328
tonnes

Roads

e Total kms of shire roads - 2,299 kms

e Total kms of gravel roads - 1,642 kms

e Total maintenance expenditure - $3,153,738

Parks & Gardens

e Total number of parks/open spaces maintained -

770 ML

140

e Total area of parks/gardens/fopen space
maintained - 120 ha

Aerodromes

e  Total aircraft movements (landings) - Mareeba
Aerodrome - 4, 610

Facilities

e Total swimming pool admissions - 68,071

e Total public halls usage - 820 bookings

e  Total Caravan Park site rentals (includes tent sites,
dongas, cabins and van sites) - 37,706

e  Total Community Housing for Seniors Service
managed - 108
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8. CORPORATE PLAN

During the three months prior to the start of the 2014/15 financial year, Council commenced the
development of a new corporate plan for the five year period 2014-2019.

With the assistance of an external consultant, a draft corporate plan was prepared and was adopted for
the purpose of public consultation at the Ordinary meeting of Council held on 2 July 2014.

A period of six weeks was allowed for public consultation and at the end of this period; Council reviewed
and discussed submissions received. The final corporate plan was adopted by Council at its Ordinary
meeting held on 3 September 2014.

The corporate plan was developed around the following four Key Strategic Priorities and Goals:

COMMUNITY: Communities across the area share a sense of common identity whilst retaining local

diversity, end enjoy equitable access to services and facilities based on effective partnerships.

ENVIRONMENT: A natural and living environment that provides safety and enjoyment for the community
and visitors.

ECONOMY: A growing and vibrant local economy supported by a planning scheme that seeks to balance
development with rural sustainability and lifestyle considerations.

GOVERNANCE: Sound decision making based on the understanding and confidence of the community,
reflected in responsible long-term financial sustainability and clear strategic direction built around core
local government business and affordable levels of service.

9. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Council has retained the two department corporate structure that was adopted on 7 May 2014.

During the 2015/16 financial year service levels were continuously reviewed to ensure that they were
delivered in the most efficient and cost effective manner. As a result of this process there were minor
restructures within a small number of teams with some functions outsourced or transitioned to alternate
suppliers. This resulted in six redundancies as well as a number of staff members transitioning to new
employers in the community sector.

At 30 June 2016, Council employed a total of 248 staff members or 211.40 full time equivalent positions.
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Director Corporate Director
and Community Infrastructure
Services Services

10. REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO SENIOR CONTRACT EMPLOYEES

Total remuneration packages payable to senior contract employees during 2015/16, as defined in s201 of

the Local Government Act 2009, were:

. 1 senior contract employee with a total remuneration package in the range of $250,000 - $350,000
. 2 senior contract employees with a total remuneration package in the range of $150,000 -
$250,000
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11. PUBLIC SECTOR ETHICS ACT

The Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 requires that the Annual Report of each public sector entity (which
includes a local government) must include an implementation statement giving details of the action
taken during the reporting period to comply with those sections of the Act relating to preparation of
codes of conduct and access to, and education and training in, the ethics principles and public sector
ethics.

The four ethics principles are:

* Integrity and impartiality;

s Promoting the public good;

s Commitment to the system of government; and
* Accountability and transparency.

Council's Employee Code of Conduct is compliant with current legislation, in particular the ethics
principles outlined above.

Education and training in relation to the ethics principles and the code of conduct is included as part of
the induction process for all new employees and refresher training is provided at regular intervals to all
employees.

Topics covered by this training include:

s The operation of the Public Sector Ethics Act 1994;

* The application of ethics principles and obligations;

¢ The contents of the Code of Conduct;

s The rights and obligations of employees in relation to a contravention of the Code of Conduct.

This education and training has been provided to employees, contractors, volunteers and students on
work experience.

Copies of the ethics principles and Code of Conduct are provided at each workplace for access by Council
staff. Any person, other than Council staff, can obtain access to, or purchase a copy of, the Code of
Conduct at any of the Council's administration offices.

The administrative procedures and management practices of the Council have regard to the ethics
obligations of public officials and the Council's Code of Conduct and all employees are required to act in
ways which give commitment to a high standard of ethics and which ensure the highest standards of
public administration.
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12. ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION COMPLAINTS

Administrative action complaints are processed in accordance with the provisions of the Council's
adopted Complaints Management policy.

The objectives of the policy are to ensure that the Council has an organised way of responding to,
recording, reporting and using complaints to improve service to the community.

The Complaints Management System governed by the policy aims to:

* Be fair and objective. All complaints are considered on their merits and the principles of natural
justice are observed.

s Support continuous improvement. Where applicable, the outcomes from a complaints management
process are applied to improve business operations, policies and procedures.

* Be open and accountable. The decisions and outcomes regarding a complaint are made available to
the affected person, subject to statutory provisions.

s Be accessible and simple to understand. The process facilitates feedback from the community in a
form that encourages participation.

In relation to Council's performance in resolving complaints under the complaints management process,
as can be seen in the Table below, the number of complaints outstanding at the end of the financial year
was 8 compared to a carry-over of 24 at the end of the previous financial year.

During the course of the first half of the year a full review was undertaken of all outstanding complaints
so as to ascertain the status of those complaints that were carried over from the previous year. This
process, which was carried out progressively over a number of months, was able to determine what
action needed to be undertaken to either resolve and/or finalise those complaints. The result saw a
significant reduction in the number of complaints still unresolved at the end of the current reporting
period and no carry-over of complaints from the previous reporting period.

Administrative action complaints carried over from the previous financial year 24
Administrative action complaints lodged during 2015/16 22
Administrative action complaints resolved during 2015/16 38
Administrative action complaints unresolved at close of the financial year 8
Number of unresolved administrative action complaints that relate to the previous 0
financial year
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13. ELECTED REPRESENTATIVES

Mayor Tom Gilmore

Committees:

Kuranda Infrastructure Advisory Committee
Tourism Kuranda

Cairns District Disaster Management Group

Local Disaster Management Group (LDMG)

FNQ Regional Organisation of Councils

Kuranda Community Precinct Advisory Committee
Mona Mona Community Board

Western Progress Association Watsonville
Julatten and Mt Molloy Association of Residents and Ratepayers
(JAMARR)

Mareeba PCYC Management Committee

Councillor Alan Pedersen - Deputy Mayor

Committees:

Northern Region Pest Advisory Committee
Local Disaster Management Group (LDMG)
FNQ Regional Roads Group

Northern Gulf Resource Management Group
Local Traffic Advisory Committee

FNQ Pest Advisory Forum

cillor Edward (Nipp

Committees:

Mareeba Sporting Precinct Committee

Kuranda Community Precinct Advisory Committee (Proxy)
NQ Sports Foundation

Barron Catchment Care

Great Wheelbarrow Race Organising Committee
JAMARR (Proxy)

LAWMAC

Mareeba Liquor Industry Action Group
Tablelands Outdoor Recreation Association
Tropical Tablelands Tourism

LDMG Public Health & Environment Sub Group
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Committees:

Great Wheelbarrow Race Organising Committee (Proxy)
Mareeba Heritage Centre Management Committee (Proxy)
Audit Committee

Irvinebank Progress Association

Chillagoe Alliance

Speewah Residents Group (SRG) (Proxy)

FNQ Regional Roads Group (Proxy)

Local Traffic Advisory Committee (Proxy)

LDMG Built Environment Infrastructure Sub Group

Committees:

Tablelands Futures Corporation

Audit Committee

Building Safer Communities Regional Committee
Mareeba Heritage Centre Management Committee
Mareeba Multicultural Festival Committee

Relay for Life Committee

Homelessness Community Advisory Group

LDMG Economic Sub Group

Committees:

Kuranda Infrastructure Advisory Committee

Kuranda Community Precinct Advisory Committee (Proxy)
JAMARR (Proxy)

Regional Arts Development Fund (RADF)

Mareeba Heritage Centre Management Committee (Proxy)
Mareeba PCYC Management Committee

Speewah Residents Group (SRG) (Proxy)

Kuranda Interagency Networks (KIN)

Reef Guardians

Wet Tropics Water Resource Plan

LDMG Community Support Sub Group

Committees:

Local District Disaster Management Group

Barron Catchment Care (Proxy)

Terrain (FNQNRM)

Mareeba Multicultural Festival Committee (Proxy)
Speewah Residents Group (SRG)

Northern Region Pest Advisory Committee (Proxy)
Barron River Integrated Catchment Management Association
(BRICMA) Lower Zone

LDMG Community Support Sub Group

BRICMA Central Zone Forum

Tourism Kuranda
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14. COUNCILLOR REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES REIMBURSEMENT

COUNCILLOR REMUNERATION

The amount of remuneration paid to Local Government councillors for the time and effort spent on
Council business is determined by the Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal ('The
Tribunal’).

The Tribunal has determined that the Mareeba Shire Council is a Category 3 Council and the following
annual remuneration amounts applied to Category 3 Councils during the period 1 July 2015 to 30 June
2016:

$97,684 $56,356 $48,842

The total remuneration paid to each Councillor and the total superannuation contribution paid on behalf
of each Councillor during the period 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 is as follows:

Cr Tom Gilmore 104,718.42 12,172.95
Cr Alan Pedersen 55,731.84 6,294.48
Cr Edward Brown 53,997.84 6,086.34
Cr Kevin Davies 11,999.52 1,352.52
Cr Mary Graham 53,997.84 6,086.34
Cr Angela Toppin 11,999.52 1,352.52
Cr Lenore Wyatt 11,999.52 1,352.52
Cr Jenny Jensen 45,518.34 5,716.56
Cr Karen Ewin 41,998.32 1,764.62
Cr Allan Holmes 41,998.32 3,747.66

COUNCILLOR EXPENSES REIMBURSEMENT

In addition to remuneration for time spent on Council business, local government Councillors are also
entitled to receive reimbursement of all approved expenses incurred in undertaking their role as a
Councillor.

Section 250 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires each local government to adopt an
expenses reimbursement policy.

The following Councillor Remuneration, Expenses Reimbursement and Resources Policy were adopted by
Council at its meeting held on 6 April 2016. An amendment to the policy to remove the provisions
relating to payment of meeting fee were required and an amendment in regards to attendance to
professional development. No other changes were made to the policy during the 2015/16 financial year.
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COUNCILLOR REMUNERATION, EXPENSES REIMBURSEMENT AND RESOURCES POLICY
1. POLICY INTENT

The purpose of the policy is to ensure that elected members can receive reimbursement of reasonable
expenses and be provided with the necessary facilities to perform their role. The policy will ensure
accountability and transparency in the reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Mayor, Deputy Mayor
and Councillors.

The policy also includes details of how the remuneration payable to local government Councillors is
determined by the Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal.

2. STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES

This policy is consistent with the local government principles as set out in the Local Government Act

2009:

. Transparent and effective processes, and decision making in the public interest;

. Sustainable development and management of assets and infrastructure, and delivery of effective
services;

. Democratic representation, social inclusion and meaningful community engagement;

. Good governance of, and by, local government; and

. Ethical and legal behaviour of Councillors and local government employees.

3. SCOPE

This policy applies to the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors of the Mareeba Shire.
4. BACKGROUND/SUPPORTING INFORMATION

A local government is required to adopt an expenses reimbursement policy in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

The adopted policy can be amended, by resolution, at any time and must be able to be inspected and a
copy purchased by the public at the local government’s public office and also published on the local
government’s website.

In order to provide clarity around the provisions of the policy, the following will apply:

Council business will include attendance at any official meeting of the Council, including the meetings of
any Committee appointed by the Council under the relevant section of the Local Government Regulation
2012, Councillor forums and workshops and meetings of any external agency, committee, board or
organisation on which Council input or representation is desirable and to which a Councillor has been
appointed by formal resolution of the Council.

Council business also includes attendance at meetings and functions of community groups and
organisations which Councillors have been formally requested or appointed to attend in an official
capacity. It should be noted, however, that Council business should result in a benefit being achieved
either for the local government and/or the local government area. Council may decide that this extends
to performing civic ceremony duties such as opening a school fete, however, participating in a
community group event or being a representative on a board not associated with Council is not regarded
as Council business.

Page 22

L\ e

Page 28



f
W% Mareeba
%m§ SHIRE COUNCIL

Mareeba Shire Council - Agenda Wednesday 26 October 2016

Mareeba ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

5. POLICY STATEMENT
5.1 Remuneration

In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government
Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal is responsible for:

a. Establishing the categories of local governments; and
b. Deciding which categories each local government belongs to; and
C. Deciding the remuneration that is payable to the Councillors in each of those categories.

In accordance with the relevant sections of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the Tribunal must, on
or before 1 December each year and for each category of local government, decide and publish in the
Gazette the remuneration schedule that may be paid from 1 July of the following year to a Mayor,

Deputy Mayor or a Councillor of a local government in each category.

The remuneration may include, or may separately provide for, remuneration for the duties a Councillor
may be required to perform if the Councillor is appointed to a committee, or as chairperson or deputy
chairperson of a committee, of a local government.

The remuneration fixed by the Tribunal is all inclusive and no additional remuneration is payable for sick
leave, annual leave, or any other benefits otherwise applicable to employees other than superannuation.
The remuneration can not include any amount for expenses to be paid or facilities to be provided to a
Councillor under the expenses reimbursement section of this policy.

The maximum amount of remuneration payable to a Councillor, as determined by the Tribunal, must be
paid to the Councillor unless the local government decides, by resolution, not to pay the maximum
amount.

Any resolution not to pay the maximum amount must be made within 90 days after each remuneration
schedule is published in the Gazette. Apart from a resolution not to pay the maximum amount, there are
no other resolutions required of Council in relation to remuneration and the schedules published by the
Tribunal apply automatically from the 1 July in each year.

The Tribunal has determined that the Mareeba Shire Council will be a Category 2 Council as from 1 July
2016.

5.1.1 Superannuation and tax

The Council may, by unanimous Council resolution, elect to be an "eligible local governing body". This
empowers the withholding of Councillors' income tax and automatic payment of the superannuation
guarantee contribution.

5.2 Expenses
5.2.1 Payment of Expenses

Reimbursement of expenses will be paid to a Councillor through administrative processes approved by
the Council’s Chief Executive Officer {CEO) subject to:

. the limits outlined in this policy; and
. Council endorsement by resolution.
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The administrative process for payment of expenses is:

. Councillors complete the Councillor Expenses Reimbursement Voucher, attaching copies of
supporting documentation such as log book extracts and receipts;

. Completed forms submitted to the CEO for approval;

. Office of the CEO forwards approved forms to accounts payable.

5.2.2 Travel as required to represent Council

Council will reimburse local and in some cases interstate and overseas travel expenses (e.g. flights, motor
vehicle, accommodation, meals and associated registration fees) deemed necessary to achieve the
business of Council where:

. a Councillor is an official representative of Council; and / or
. the activity/event and travel have been endorsed by resolution of Council or approved by the
Mayor and/or the CEO.

Councillors are to travel via the most direct route, using the most economical and efficient mode of
transport.

5.3 Vehicles
5.3.1 Use of council vehicles on council business

A Council vehicle will be provided for exclusive use by the Mayor and other Councillors may have access
to a Council vehicle, as required (and if available at the time), for official Council business. A Councillor
wishing to use a Council vehicle for Council business must submit a request to the Chief Executive Officer
at least two (2) days prior to use, except in exceptional circumstances as determined between the
Councillor, Mayor and CEO.

5.3.2 Private use of Council vehicles

Private use of Council owned vehicles is only permitted if prior approval has been granted by resolution
of Council. Council will, in its resolution authorising private use, set out the terms for the Councillor to
reimburse Council for the private use. Unless otherwise stated, reimbursement for private usage will be
calculated on the basis of the number of private kilometres travelled as per log book substantiation,
multiplied by the appropriate rate per business kilometre as determined by the Australian Taxation
Office,

"Private use" in this context does not include incidental and occasional private use if the private
destination is on a direct path between Council business destinations. In the case of the vehicle provided
to the Mayor, home garaging is approved without the need for reimbursement.

Fuel costs

Fuel for a Council owned vehicle used for official Council business, will be provided or paid for by Council.

Fuel costs associated with use of a Councillor's private vehicle are covered by the private vehicle
expenses reimbursement rates.

Page 24

L\ e

Page 30



f
W% Mareeba
%m§ SHIRE COUNCIL

Mareeba Shire Council - Agenda Wednesday 26 October 2016

Mareeba ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

5.3.3 Use of a Councillor's private vehicle
A Councillor's private vehicle usage will be reimbursed by Council if the:

. travel within the region is required to conduct official Council business (this includes driving their
own private vehicle to and from Council offices and use of their vehicle to carry out any
inspections deemed necessary to fulfil their role as a Councillor, including inspections of roads,
Council works and facilities, areas of complaint and development application proposals);

. travel outside the region has been endorsed by Council resolution or by the Mayor;
. claim for mileage is substantiated with log book details; and
. total travel claim, where applicable, does not exceed the cost of the same travel using economy

flights plus the cost of taxi transfers.

Reimbursement rates for business kilometres as published by the Australian Tax Office will be applied.
Private vehicle insurance is at the risk of the user for both private and business use.

NOTE: Any fines incurred while travelling in Council owned vehicles or privately owned vehicles when
attending to Council business, will be the responsibility of the Councillor incurring the fine.

5.3.4 Policy on vehicle use in cases of where high mileage travel

Reimbursement of private vehicle use is only cost effective under a certain threshold. This threshold is
dependent on the type of vehicle; currently for a medium size sedan it is 12,600 km but will be reviewed
on an ongoing basis to ensure the most cost efficient method is used.

Where Councillors are expected to, or do, travel over the annual threshold, they can, by request to the
Mayor, be provided with a Council vehicle under the same terms and conditions as the Mayor instead of
being reimbursed a kilometre allowance. This will also be dependent on the availability of a Council
vehicle,

In the event that a Council vehicle is allocated to a Councillor as a result of this clause, this allocation will
be reviewed quarterly to ensure that the threshold is still being exceeded. A logbook must be maintained
at a standard that the ATO will accept to negate any FBT liability.

5.3.5 Car parking amenities

Council will reimburse Councillors for parking costs paid by Councillors while attending to official Council
business.

5.4 Travel bookings

All Councillor travel approved by Council will be booked and paid for by Council, unless travelling by
private or Council vehicle. Wherever possible, payment for such travel will be made by Council in
advance.

Economy class is to be used where possible although Council may approve business class in certain
circumstances.

Airline tickets are not transferable and can only be procured for the Councillor's travel on Council
business. They cannot be used to offset other unapproved expenses. {e.g. cost of partner or spouse
accompanying the Councillor).
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Council will pay for reasonable expenses incurred for overnight accommodation when a Councillor is
required to stay outside the Mareeba Shire Council local government area.

5.5 Travel transfer costs

Any travel transfer expenses associated with Councillors travelling for Council approved business will be

reimbursed. Example: Trains, taxis, buses and ferry fares.

Cab charge vouchers may also be used if approved by Council where Councillors are required to
undertake duties relating to the business of Council.

5.6 Accommodation

All Councillor accommodation for Council business will be booked and paid for by Council. Council will
pay for the most economical deal available. Where possible, the minimum standards for Councillors’
accommodation should be three or four star rating. Where particular accommodation is recommended
by conference organisers, Council will take advantage of the package deal that is the most economical
and convenient to the event. Should more than one Councillor attend the same event, Council will book
and pay for a separate accommaodation room for each attending Councillor.

5.7 Meals
Council will reimburse the reasonable cost of meals for a Councillor where a Councillor:

. incurs the cost personally; and

. is not provided with a meal:
o within the registration costs of the approved activity/event;
o) during an approved flight; and

. produces a valid tax invoice.

Council will reimburse the actual cost of meals, however the current Australian Taxation Office
determination in this regard will be considered with regard to the reasonableness of the claim.

If a Councillor, for some legitimate reason, is unable to produce a tax invoice and seeks reimbursement
for meals while attending official Council business, he/she may claim up to a maximum of the following
meal allowance amounts (noting this can only occur when the meal was not provided within the
registration costs of the approved activity/event):

$23.00 | Applies if the Councillor is required to depart their home prior to 6.00am
$25.00

$43.00 | Applies if the Councillor returns to their home after 9.00pm

No alcohol will be paid for by Council.

Should the Councillor choose not to attend a provided dinner/meal, then the full cost of the alternative

meal shall be met by the Councillor.
5.8 Incidental allowance

Up to $20 per day may be paid by Council to cover any incidental costs incurred by Councillors required
to travel, and who are away from home overnight, for official Council business.
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5.9 Additional expenses for Mayor
5.9.1 Hospitality

Council may reimburse the Mayor up to $1,000 per annum for hospitality expenses deemed necessary in
the conduct of Council business (excluding civic receptions organised by Council).

To claim, the Mayor must provide a written statement of whom he/she entertained and an indication of
the costs. Receipts, if available, should be provided but are not mandatory.

5.10 Provision of facilities

Council will provide facilities for the use of Councillors in the conduct of their respective roles within

Council.

All facilities provided to Councillors remain the property of Council and must be returned to Council
when a Councillor’s term expires.

5.11  Private use of council owned facilities

The facilities provided to Councillors are to be used only for Council business unless prior approval has
been granted by resolution of Council.

The Council resolution authorising private use of Council owned facilities will set out the terms under
which the Councillor will reimburse Council for the percentage of private use.

5.12  Administrative tools
Administrative tools will be provided to Councillors as required to assist Councillors in their role.

Administrative tools include:

. office space (where available) and meeting rooms

. computer/laptop

. stationery including business cards

. access to photocopiers, printers, fax and/or scanner, shredder

. name badge

. necessary safety equipment for use on official business (eg safety helmet, boots, safety glasses)
. use of Council landline telephones and internet access in Council offices

. any other administrative necessities which Council resolves are necessary to meet the business

needs of Council

Secretarial support may also be provided for the Mayor and Councillors, within the existing staff
structure, by Council resolution.

Each Councillor will be provided with a single standard laptop that can be used both at the Council work
location and at the Councillor’s home office. Each laptop will be loaded with the Microsoft Office Suite
and email software.
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In recognition of the fact that office space within Council facilities is limited and that use of technology
such as internet and electronic distribution of agendas and minutes is generally more efficient and
practical than requiring Councillors to travel to the Council administration centre to undertake the day to
day tasks associated with their role, Council will ensure that appropriate home office facilities are

provided for Councillors.

Accordingly, Council will supply and pay for an internet and land based phone line at the Councillor's
residence. An individual combination printer/scanner/fax may also be provided for home office use if
required.

Council will pay the installation costs (if required) and the monthly costs for the line rental and current
internet package. The amount paid will be based on the Telstra Home Broadband S package (currently
valued at $73 per month).

iPad

To further enhance the ability of Councillors to communicate electronically with Council, particularly
email communication and distribution of agendas, minutes and other information, Council will pay for the
purchase of an iPad and associated internet usage via a monthly package arrangement. The package will
be to the value of Telstra Mobile Package M (currently $56 per month or as amended from time to time
by the CEO as required).

The Councillor is to arrange the purchase of the iPad and appropriate monthly data plan in their personal
capacity. Council will pay the package amount, as above, to the Councillor on a monthly basis. Any costs
over and above the monthly payment by Council will be at the Councillor's expense.

Alternatively, Councillors may elect to have an iPad supplied to them by Council and connected to a
Council arranged monthly data plan.

Mobile Phone

As per the above arrangements for supply of an iPad for Councillors' use, Council will also pay the costs of

a mobile phone package for Councillors.

The package will be to the value of Telstra Mobile Package XL (currently $134 per month or as amended
from time to time by the CEO as required).

The Councillor is to arrange the purchase of the phone and appropriate monthly phone plan in their
personal capacity. Council will pay the package amount, as above, to the Councillor on a monthly basis.
Any costs over and above the monthly payment by Council will be at the Councillor's expense.

Alternatively, Councillors may elect to have an iPhone supplied to them by Council and connected to a
Council arranged monthly phone plan. Where this option is chosen, an amount of $240 per annum will be
deducted from the remuneration payable to the Councillor/s concerned to cover the cost of any private
usage of the Council phone unless a Statutory Declaration is signed undertaking not to use the phone for

private calls.
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General

All Council supplied electronic devices are provided under Council’s policies relating to computer use,
security and internet and email usage. Supplied devices will be supported and maintained through
Council's IT Request Tracker system within standard business hours.

Where required, training in the use of the equipment/software that has been provided by Council will be
available.

Council will be responsible for the ongoing maintenance and reasonable wear and tear costs of Council
owned equipment that is supplied to Councillors for official business use.

5.13 Insurance cover

Council will indemnify or insure Councillors in the event of injury sustained while discharging their civic
duties. Specifically, insurance cover will be provided for public liability, professional indemnity,
Councillors liability and personal accident.

Council will pay the excess for injury claims made by a Councillor resulting from conducting official

Council business and on any claim made under insurance cover.

Council will cover costs incurred through injury, investigation, hearings or legal proceedings into the
conduct of a Councillor, or arising out of, or in connection with the Councillor's performance of his/her
civic functions. Where it is found that a Councillor breached the provisions of the Local Government Act
or that the conduct the subject of investigation, hearings or legal proceedings was intentional, deliberate,
dishonest, fraudulent, criminal or malicious, the Councillor will reimburse Council for all associated costs
incurred by Council.

5.14 Professional development

Where Council resolves that all Councillors are to attend training courses, workshops, seminars and
conferences that are related to the role of a Councillor (mandatory professional development), Council
will reimburse the total costs of their attendance at the nominated events.

In addition, where a Councillor identifies a need to attend a conference, workshop or training to improve
skills relevant to their role as a Councillor (discretionary professional development), expenses will be
reimbursed as per Council resolution on a case by case basis. The Mayor may attend any LGAQ

conference/seminar or other relevant conference as Council's representative as required.

Councillors desirous of undertaking either mandatory or discretionary professional development should
advise the CEO of their interest in attending a specific training course, workshop, seminar or conference
and the CEO will provide a report to Council seeking Council endorsement of attendance at the event.
(End of Policy)
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The total amount of expenses reimbursed to or paid on behalf of each Councillor during the period 1 July

2015 to 30 June 2016 is as follows:

Name Conferences ($) Communication ($) Travel costs - vehicle
()

Cr Tom Gilmore 2,487.37 3,155.88 21,581.00

Cr Alan Pedersen 144.55 3,155.88 5,612.20

Cr Edward Brown 1,200.99 3,155.88 0

Cr Kevin Davies 6] 728.28 0

Cr Mary Graham 0 3,155.88 0

Cr Angela Toppin 0 728.28 0

Cr Lenore Wyatt 686.96 728.28 0

Cr Jenny Jensen 650.82 2,114.00 5,625.00

Cr Karen Ewin 2,113.63 2,427.60 0

Cr Allan Holmes 822.73 2,427.60 0

In accordance with the policy provisions outlined above, Councillors were also provided with the facilities

necessary to effectively undertake the requirements of their position. These facilities included:

. Administrative and secretarial support;

. Office space and Council meeting rooms;

. Desktop and/or laptop computer, iPad;

. Use of Council landline telephone and internet access;

. Access to fax, photocopier, scanner, printer and stationery;

. Name badge;

. Council owned vehicles available for business use by all Councillors - individual usage figures not
available;

. Insurance cover under relevant Council policies (Public Liability, Councillor's Liability, Personal
Accident, Workers Compensation);

. Provision of meals (lunches/morning teas) when attending Council meetings and workshops.

Page 30

L\ e

Page 36




Mareeba
SHIRE COUNCIL
Mareeba Shire Council - Agenda Wednesday 26 October 2016

Mareeba ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

15. COUNCILLOR CONDUCT - 1 JULY 2015 TO 30 JUNE 2016

Orders and recommendations made under section 180(2) or (4) of the Act Nil
Orders made under section 181 of the Act Nil
Complaints about the conduct or performance of councillors for which no further Nil
action was taken under section 176C(2) of the Act

Complaints referred to the department's chief executive under section 176C(3)(a){i} Nil
of the Act

Complaints referred to the mayor under section 176C(3)(a)(ii) or (b)(i) of the Act Nil
Complaints referred to the department's chief executive under section 176C(4)(a) of Nil
the Act

Complaints assessed by the chief executive officer as being about corrupt conduct Nil
under the Crime and Corruption Act

Complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel Nil
Complaints heard by the tribunal Nil
Complaints to which section 176C(6) of the Act applied Nil

16. COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS HELD 1 JULY 2015 TO

30JUNE 2016
Ordinary Meetings 22
Special (Budget) Meetings 1
Special (Post Election) Meetings 1
Cr Tom Gilmore 24
Cr Alan Pedersen 22
Cr Edward Brown 24
Cr Kevin Davies 7
Cr Mary Graham 24
Cr Angela Toppin 8
Cr Lenore Wyatt 8
Cr Jenny Jensen 16
Cr Karen Ewin 16
Cr Allan Holmes 16
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17. OVERSEAS TRAVEL

No overseas travel was undertaken by Councillors or employees of the Council during 2015/16.

18. GRANTS TO COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS

The following grants/donations were provided to community groups and sporting clubs during the period
1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 in accordance with Council's Community Partnerships Program (CPP) Policy
and the Rate Rebate and Remission Policy 2015/16:

Cash 28,762
Remittance of Rates and Charges 10,765
Water Consumption Fees 6,462
In-Kind Assistance 37,388
Total 83,327

Grants provided through the Regional Arts Development Fund for arts and cultural projects are separate
to the amounts listed above and totalled $38,045 for the 2015/16 financial year.

Councillors of the Mareeba Shire Council are not provided with discretionary funds to allocate as they see
fit. Funding was not therefore provided to community organisations from this source.

19. REGISTERS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Register of Members Interests

Register of Delegations by Council

Register of Roads

Register of General Charges and Regulatory Fees
Register of Delegations by the Chief Executive Officer
Register of Local Laws and Subordinate Local Laws
Register of Lands

Register of Policies

Cemetery Register

Impounding Register

Gifts and Benefits Register

Register of On-site Sewerage Facilities

20. CHANGES TO TENDERS

There were no occasions during the year where persons who submitted a tender were invited to change
their tender to take account of a change in the tender specification prior to Council making a decision
(Section 228(7) of the Local Government Regulation 2012).
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21. RESERVES AND CONTROLLED ROADS

The Mareeba Shire Council has control of:

(i) 9,944 ha of land (including approximately 1,080ha leased to other parties) which is set apart as 224
separate reserves under the Land Act 1994. The land is reserved for a number of different
purposes including the following:

¢  Camping, Water and Pasturage e Park/Park and Recreation

s Cemetery e  Public Hall and Recreation

. Drainage . Racecourse

s Educational Institution ®  Rubbish Depot

*  Esplanade & Sanitary

¢  Environmental e  Scenic

¢ Gravel e  School of Arts

e  Heritage and Historical e  Showground and Sportsground
s Hospital s  Sport and Recreation

¢ Llanding Ground for Aircraft e Stock Holding/Trucking

e Library e  Strategic Land Management
s Local Government *  Township

s  Memorial Park s  Water Supply

(ii) 624 kms of State Controlled Roads that are not owned by the Council but for which Council has
direct maintenance responsibility (refer section 60 of the Local Government Act 2009).

This land (both reserves and roads) does not have a value for the Council's financial statements.

22. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES - APPLICATION OF CODE OF
COMPETITIVE CONDUCT

The following business activities were conducted by Council during the 2015/16 financial year:
e Water Supply

¢ Sewerage

¢ Waste Management

* Soil Laboratory

e Building Certification

The Local Government Act 2009 (section 45 (b)) requires that a Council's annual report must identify the
business activities that are a significant business activity. A significant business activity does not include a
building certifying activity, a roads activity or an activity related to the provision of library services. The
Local Government Regulation 2012 (section 19) identifies the following expenditure thresholds for
significant business activities:

e $13.,75M for combined water and sewerage services
e $9.2M for another business activity
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The Regulation also provides that a local government must use the financial information for the previous
financial year that was presented to the local government's budget meeting to identify each new
significant business activity for the financial year. None of the Council's business activities exceeded the
threshold for a significant business activity for the 2015/16 financial year.

The business activities listed above were also conducted by Council in the previous financial year
(2014/15) and there were no new business activities commenced in 2016/17.

23. COMPETITIVE NEUTRALITY COMPLAINTS

There was one (1) Competitive Neutrality Complaint received by Council in relation to the operation of
one of its business activities during the year. This matter was originally being dealt with through the
Queensland Competition Authority; however, with the enactment of the Queensiand Productivity
Commission Act 2015 (Qld) responsibility for dealing with investigation of this complaint has now been
passed to the Queensland Productivity Commission. This investigation process is still underway.

24. INTERNAL AUDIT/AUDIT COMMITTEE

Internal Audit

The function of internal audit function provides stakeholders with a level of assurance that business
processes are operating appropriately and effectively in accordance with organisational and legislative
requirements. Pacifica Chartered Accountants provide internal audit services for Mareeba Shire Council.

A three year Internal Audit Plan covering the period 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018 was developed by
Pacifica in consultation with Council's Executive Management Team during July 2015. This Plan was
received by the Audit Committee on 28 September 2015 and is based on a prioritisation of the Corporate

Risk Register.
Internal Audit activities undertaken during the 2015/16 year include:

e Corporate Card Procedures

e Customer Request Management and Complaints Handling
e Review of Councillor Obligations under LGA2009

* Cash Handling Practices

e Procurement Compliance Review (commenced in 2014/15)

Audit Committee

Mareeba Shire Audit Committee comprises two Councillors (Crs Holmes - replaced by Cr Davies, and Cr
Graham) and an independent member as chairperson (Katrina Faulkner).

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year; 13 August 2015, 28
September 2015 and 10 March 2016.
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The main issues considered by the Committee throughout the 2015/16 year were:

* Consideration of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
e Audit strategy for the 2015/16 financial year

e Internal audit status

e Enterprise Risk Management

e External audit status

* Probity audit status
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25. COMMUNITY FINANCIAL REPORT

The Community Financial Report is produced to enable members of the community to gain a better
understanding of our financial performance and position over the last financial year.

The report uses plain language and pictorial aids such as graphs and tables to give all interested readers
and stakeholders an easy to follow summary of the financial statements.

The Community Financial Report is prepared in accordance with Section 179 of the Local Government
Regulations 2012 and focuses on:

e Statement of Comprehensive Income
+ Statement of Financial Position

* Statement of Changes in Equity

e Statement of Cash Flows

e Measures of Financial Sustainabhility

Performance highlights
During the 2015/16 financial year, Council has:

e Continued to achieve a sound financial position resulting in an operating surplus of $4.7M, which
continues to lay the foundation of Council's promising financial long term sustainability;

* Attained significant State and Federal grants to deliver highly complex assets, including the
refurbishment the Mareeba Wastewater Treatment Plant and the renewal of the Mareeba Airport
and runway. Both major projects will continue into 2016/17 and expand Council's asset base and
strengthen our region's economic future;

e Sustained relatively low debt of $6.8M at year end; and

® For the second year in a row, no major internal control and financial reporting issues were raised by
the Queensland Audit Office.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Statement of Comprehensive Income (often referred to as the Profit and Loss Statement) shows the
details of Council's operating and capital income and expenses for the year 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016.
Income less expenses results in either a profit or loss amount known as a net result.

Summarised Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2016 is shown in the

table below:
Operating Revenue 51,081
Less: Operating Expenses (46,294)
Operating Position 4,787
Plus: Capital Income 8,508
Less: Capital Expenses (327)
Net Result 12,968

This surplus is allocated to fund capital projects or transferred to reserves for future expenditure.
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Revenue - What were the major sources of income to Council?

(Where our money comes from)

Operating Revenue Sources $ (000)

Rates 26,418
Fees & Charges 1,118
Operating Grants, Subsidies & Contributions 13,994
Sales Revenue 2,742
Interest - Investment & Rates 1,668
Other Revenue 5,141
Total Operating Revenue 51,081

Operating revenue includes rates and utility charges, contract works, fees and charges, operating grants

and subsidies, and other income.

Council received $51 million in operating revenue during the financial year. This was primarily from rates
and charges which totalled $26.4 million or 51.7% of total revenue for the year. Other sources are shown

in the diagram above and the graph below.

Capital revenue is income from grants, subsidies and contributions that are used to pay for fixed assets.
Total capital revenue during the financial year was $8.5 million.

Grants, subsidies,
contributions and
donations
28%

3%

Operating Revenue - where the funds come from

Interest received

Rates, levies and
charges
53%
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Operating Expenditure - What expenses did Council have to meet?

Total operational expenses of $46.2 million were incurred in the year 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016. The
majority of funds were spent on roads, drainage and bridges, totalling $15.7 million or 34% of the total

expenditure. Other sources of expenditure are shown in the diagram below.

Operating Expenditure $ (000)

Employee Benefits 17,007
Materials and Services 19,529
Finance Costs 339
Depreciation and amortisation 9,419
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 46,294

Council building and
facilities
11%
Wastewater

Parks and Gardens
8%

Operating Expenses - where the funds were spent

Governance &
Corporate
6%

Regulatory Services,
Building and
Planning
5%
Community
Engagement and
Tourism
6%
Transport
Infrastructure
Maintenance - 3rd
party works
5%

Transport
Infrastructure
Maintenance
31%
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Statement of Financial Position

The Statement of Financial Position {more commonly known as the Balance Sheet) displays the financial
position of Council at 30 June. The statement measures what Council owns {Assets) and what Council
owes (Liabilities). The difference between these two components is the net wealth (Equity} of Council
and our community.

Each heading in the Balance Sheet is separated into detailed sub headings cross referenced to notes in
the Financial Statements which provide more detail.

What do we own?

Council's major asset class is property, plant and equipment. This is broken down into land, buildings,
plant and fleet, roads, drainage, bridges, water, sewerage and other infrastructure assets. Road,
drainage, bridge, water and sewerage infrastructure represents 80.1% of the total fixed assets and
provides a direct benefit to the community. A total of $19.2M was spent to renew, upgrade and build
new assets for the community during this financial year.

Other assets include outstanding rates, fees and charges owing to Council at 30 June 2016. These are
known as trade and other receivables. The largest amount owing is $2.8M from Tablelands Regional
Council for our share of the outstanding cash split as a result of de-amalgamation, forgone interest and
recovery of court legal costs.

What do we owe?

Council has $6.8M remaining in loans mostly for the new Mareeba Sewerage Treatment Plant upgrade
($5M). The other major liability for Council is the landfill rehabilitation provision. The old Mareeba
Landfill is scheduled to be capped and the land rehabilitated in 2017. Council has been setting aside a
provision for a number of years to cover the total expenditure which is included in the provision account
under liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

Assets - What Council Owns

Cash Assets 37,754
Receivables 9,189
Inventories 3,047
Property, Plant and Equipment 354,654
TOTAL ASSETS 404,644

Less: Liabilities - What Council Owes

Payables 9,661
Borrowings 7,067
Provisions 9,452
TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,180
NET COMMUNITY ASSETS - What Council is worth 378,464
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Statement of Changes in Equity

The difference between assets and liabilities is the total community equity or the net wealth of the
Council. The Statement of Changes in Equity shows the overall change in Council's "net wealth" over the
year. As at 30 June 2016, Council's net wealth was $378.4M.

Council's retained surplus represents amounts available to be invested into assets (now or in the future)
to provide services to the community. These surpluses can be used should unforeseen financial shocks or
adverse changes to our business occur in the future.

Statement of Cashflow

The statement of cashflow measures the inflow and outflow of cash during the period. The statement is
categorised into three groups;

e QOperating activities - are normal day to day functions of Council. This would include receipts such as
rates, fees & charges, interest received on investments and payments of employee wages, materials
and services.

e |nvesting activities - include payments for the purchase and construction of property, plant &
equipment and proceeds from the sale of assets.

e Financing activities - are repayments of principal on Council's loans, as well as the inflows from new
loans drawn down in the year.

Opening Balance - 1 July 2015 22,626
Plus: Cash inflow (outflow) from Operating activities 20,982
Cash inflow {outflow) from investing activities (22,683)
Cash inflow {outflow) from financing activities 4,829
Cash Available at End of Year 25,754

Cash at the end of the year was $25.7 million which represents cash and cash equivalents as reported in
the Balance Sheet.

Measures of Financial Sustainability (Key Financial Performance Ratios)

The Local Government Regulations 2012 requires Council's to report against the DIP sustainability
financial ratios. This information is provided below.

These ratios are designed to provide an indication of the performance of Council against key financial

sustainability criteria which must be met to ensure the prudent management of financial risks.
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Ratio Description Formula Actual Result | Bench-mark | Target
Met?

Financial Capital Sustainability Indicators

Operating This is an indicator of the
extent to which revenue
raised covers operational
expenses only or are

Surplus Ratio
Net Operating

available for capital Surplus
funding purposes. divided by
L 9% 0-10% 7]
A positive ratio indicates Total
the percentage of total .
rates available to fund Operating
capital expenditure. Revenue
The higher the ratio the
better.
Net Financial This is an indicator of the
Liabilities extent to which the net
. financial liabilities of a Total
Ratio . .
Council can be serviced by Liabilities
its operating revenues, .
) minus
A ratio less than zero
(negative) indicates that Current
the current assets exceed Assets -47% <=60%
total liabilities ar.1d divided by
therefore Council appears
to have the capacity to Total
increase its loan operating
borrowings. Revenue
The lower the percentage
the better.
Infrastructure Capital Sustainability Indicators
Asset This is an approximation

of the extent to which the
infrastructure assets
managed by Council are
being replaced as these

Sustainability
Ratio

reach the end of their Capital
useful lives. expenditure
Depreciation expense on on the
renewals {replacing assets replacement
that Council already has) of assets
is an indicator of the {renewals) 124% >90% M
extent to which the
infrastructure assets are divided by
being replaced. Depreciation
This ratio indicates expense
whether Council is {renewals)
renewing or replacing
existing non-financial
assets at the same rate
that its overall stock of
assets is wearing out.
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26. REVENUE POLICY

This policy was adopted by Council at its Budget Meeting held on 3 June 2015.
1. POLICY INTENT

This document sets out Council policy, as per annual budget resolution, in relation to the granting of
rebates and remissions on rates and charges.

2. SCOPE
This policy applies to:

* Pensioners who own and reside on their property within the Mareeba Shire Council area and who
meet the requirements set out in the Pensioner Remission Policy Statement in this document; and

* Not-for-Profit community, recreation and sporting organisations who meet the requirements set out
in the Not-for-Profit Remission Policy Statement in this document.

3. BACKGROUND/SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The Local Government Regulation 2012 - Chapter 4, Part 10 Concessions, gives local governments the
power to grant concessions for rates and charges.

A concession may only be of the following types:

* arebate of all or part of the rates or charges;

* an agreement to defer payment of the rates or charges; or

* an agreement to accept a transfer of unencumbered land in full or part payment of the rates or
charges.

A concession may only be granted by resolution of the Council and for the Mareeba Shire Council; this is
done as part of the annual budget adoption process and also noted in the adopted Revenue Statement.

4, POLICY STATEMENT
4.1 Pensioner Remission

Applicants for the remission of rates from the Mareeba Shire Council and the State Government must
satisfy the following conditions:

+ if an application is mailed in, it must be completed in detail and accompanied by a copy of both sides
of the current Pensioner Concession Card (PCC) or a DVA Gold Card;

e an applicant must truthfully and correctly supply all information requested;

e the Council Pensioner Remission is allowable on only one property at a time;

e anew application must be lodged if you change your address;

e should all owners not be in receipt of a pension or allowance, a proportionate amount of remission
may be payable based upon State Government Guidelines; and

e if a co-owner is in a spousal or recognised de-facto relationship and is an approved pensioner and is
wholly responsible for payment of all rates and charges, the subsidy will be granted in full.
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4.1.1 Council Pensioner Remission

Council grants a remission of thirty percent (30%) of the general rates up to a maximum of $240 per year
to pensioners within the Mareeba Shire Council area, providing they qualify for a remission in accordance
with the conditions, as set out below.

This excludes water usage charges, special rates or special charges, interest and other charges on land.
To be eligible you must be:

e aholder of a Pensioner Concession Card (PCC) or a DVA Gold Card;

e the owner or life tenant of the property which is your principal place of residence. A life tenancy can
be created only by a valid Will and is effective only after the death of the property owner, or by a
Supreme or Family Court Order; and

e |egally responsible for the payment of local council rates and charges levied on that property.

The Council Pensioner Remission is allowable on only one property at a time and a new application must
be lodged if you change your address.

The Council Pensioner Remissions can only be granted from the date on the pension card or 1 July 2015
(whichever is the latter), provided the application qualifies with Council's conditions.

Where the Council Pensioner Remission applies, Council will remit the appropriate amount off the rates
notice.

4.1.2 State Government Pensioner Remission

In addition to the remission allowed by Council, the State Government Scheme for Subsidisation of Rates
and Charges payable to Local Authorities by Approved Pensioners is administered by the Council and
under this Scheme, a further 20% remission is allowed to approved Pensioners up to a maximum of
$200.00 per annum on rates and charges.

Where the State Government Pensioner Remission applies, Council will remit the appropriate amount off
the rates notice and claim the reimbursement from the State Government.

D RATE AND CHARGE REMISSION
5.1 Types of Remission

Council grants a remission of the following to Council approved not-for-profit community, recreation and
sporting organisations:

e Rate Remission - is fifty percent (50%) of the general rates up to a maximum of $1,000 per year;
and/or

e Charge Remission - is twenty percent (20%) up to a maximum of $200 per year on Utility Charges
(Sewerage, Waste Collection and Water Access Charges) and the Waste Management Levy.
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5.2 Definition of not-for-profit community, recreation and sporting organisation

A not-for-profit is a community organisation which exists primarily to undertake community service
activities. Should the organisation receive Federal or State Government funding support for the
organisation's operations then they are ineligible for assistance under this policy. If the organisation does
not receive ongoing Federal or State Government funding support, then one or more of the following
criteria must be met to be eligible as a not-for-profit organisation:

* anot-for-profit organisation which exists primarily to undertake community service activities and
relies mainly on volunteer labour; or

* anot-for-profit organisation which has a high level of paid labour and a low level of volunteer labour,
however, a substantial community benefit is provided; or

* anot-for-profit organisation which undertakes sporting or recreational activities and relies on player
and/or fees and community fundraising only; or

* an owner of a cultural icon which is a tourist attraction and to which the public is given access for no
fee or charge;

53 Application and Continuation of the Remission

An initial application using the approved form must be lodged and an approved applicant is required to
apply for continuance of the remission on the approved form on an annual basis or as requested by
Council. The application should state that the information provided in the initial application is still current

and that they would like to continue in claiming the approved remission/s.

The remission/s, if approved, will apply from the start of the rating period in which the application was
successful and will be shown on the rates notice.

Applications for Rate and/or Charge Remission will only be considered for not-for-profit organisations as
defined above and which comply with all the eligibility criteria.

To be eligible you must:

e operate within the boundaries of the Mareeba Shire Council;

s own or lease and occupy the land on which the general rates are being levied and the rates notice
issued in the organisation's name;

e the property must not be used for residential purposes unless utilised for short-term accommodation
for homeless and at risk persons or for accommodation of the aged;

e ot utilise gaming machines to raise revenue;

* inits constitution clearly prohibit any member of the organisation making private profit or gain either
from the ongoing operations of the organisation or as a result of the distribution of assets if the
organisation was wound up (this condition does not apply to the owner of a cultural icon);

* meet the definition of a not-for-profit community, recreation and sporting organisation;

¢ not have outstanding rates on the property;

* lodge an application on the approved form. The application must also include any two of the
following supporting documentation:

o a copy of the organisation's constitution or certificate of incorporation;
o] minutes of its most recent Annual General Meeting;
o) incorporated groups are to provide a copy of their most recent audited financial

statement (no greater than 12 months old), unincorporated groups are to provide a copy
of their most recent reconciled financial statement (no greater than 12 months old);

o details of the organisation's not-for-profit status from the Australian Taxation office or
similar.
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If in circumstances where an organisation does not fulfil its lease obligations, the remission can be
cancelled by the Director Corporate and Community Services.

The remission is not available on vacant land.

There is a responsibility upon the not-for-profit organisation to contact the Council when there is a
change that could affect the status of the remission so as to avoid the necessity for the organisation to
reimburse the remission so obtained.

In some cases, the Council may have sufficient information on its records to make an assessment of the
application. In other instances, Council may need to conduct a site inspection and/or request further
information.

Where the Rate and Charge Remission applies, Council will remit the appropriate amount off the rates
notice. (End of Policy)
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27. DEBT (BORROWING) POLICY

This policy was adopted by Council at its Budget Meeting held on 3 June 2015.

1. POLICY INTENT

The intent of this policy is to detail the principles upon which Council bases its decisions when
considering the type of expenditure to be funded by borrowing for the financial years 2015/16 to
2024/25, the total current and projected borrowings and the ranges of periods over which they will be
repaid.

2. SCOPE
This policy applies to all borrowing of the Council.
3. BACKGROUND/SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Pursuant to Section 192 of the lLocal Government Regulation 2012, Council’'s adopted Policy on
Borrowings for the period 2015/16 to 2024/25 is set out below.

4. POLICY STATEMENT
The Council will not use long-term debt to finance current operations.

Long term debt is only to be used for income producing assets or those assets that can be matched to a
revenue stream. Consequently, repayments for the borrowings will be funded from the revenue streams
generated by the asset acquisition in question. Consideration must also be given to the long-term
financial forecast before planning new borrowings.

Council will utilise long-term borrowing only for capital improvement projects that cannot be financed
from existing sources.

Capital projects are to only be undertaken after a thorough process of evaluation (including whole of life
costing and risk assessment), prioritisation and review.

When Council finances capital projects through borrowings it will generally pay back the loans in a term
not exceeding 20 years. However, in certain circumstances, particularly assets with long useful lives,
borrowings may be for a longer period whereby repayments would match the income stream of the asset
in question. Existing loans will be paid back within the fixed term provided for in the loan agreement.

Council will continue to ensure repayment schedules are well within Council’s operating capability so as
to ensure the Community is not burdened with unnecessary risk.
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Projected Future Borrowing Predictions:

Mareeba Sewerage Treatment Plant
2015/16 20 years $5,000,000
upgrade

2016/17 - - -
2017/18 - - -
2018/19 - - -
2019/20 - - -
2020/21 ; . ]

2021/22 - - -

2022/23 - . -

2023/24 - - -

2024/25 . _ B

Level of Existing Debt - As at 30 June 2015, Mareeba Shire Council's outstanding loan balance is
estimated to be $1.9M. (End of Policy)
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28. POLICY ON REBATES AND CONCESSIONS

Council resolved at its budget meeting held on 15 June 2016 to grant a remission of 30% of all differential
general rates, except interest and other charges, to pensioners who own and reside on their property
within the Mareeba Shire Council local government area, provided that they satisfy the conditions as set
out in the Rate Rebates and Remissions Policy and on the Pension Remission Application Form, with the
maximum Council remission allowable being $240 per property.

In addition to the remission granted by Council, the State Government Scheme for Subsidisation of Rates
and Charges payable to Local Authorities by Approved Pensioners is administered by the Council and
under this Scheme, a further 20% remission is allowed to approved pensioners up to a maximum of
$200.00 per annum on rates and charges.

The total pensioner remission granted by Council during the year was $388,053.
The total State Government subsidy granted to approved pensioners was $322,353.
The total State Government fire levy pensioner rebate was $42,360.

Council also resolved to grant a remission of fifty (50%) percent up to a maximum of one thousand
($1,000.00) dollars on all general rates and a charge remission of twenty (20%) percent up to a maximum
of two hundred ($200) dollars on Utility Charges (Sewerage, Waste Collection and Water Access Charges)
and the Waste Management Levy only, to Council approved not-for-profit organisations who own or
lease a property within the Mareeba Shire, excluding vacant land, provided that they satisfy the
conditions as set out in the Rate Rebates and Remissions Policy. Total amount donated or remitted
during the year was $17,751.

29. SERVICE, FACILITY OR ACTIVITY SUPPLIED BY ANOTHER LOCAL
GOVERNMENT AND FOR WHICH SPECIAL RATES/CHARGES ARE LEVIED

The Council did not during the year, take any action in relation to, or expend funds on, a service, facility

or activity:

(i) supplied by another local government under an agreement for conducting a joint government
activity; and

(i)  for which the local government levied special rates or charges for the financial year.

30. THRESHOLD FOR TREATING NON-CURRENT ASSETS AS AN EXPENSE

There were no resolutions made during the year under section 206(2) of the Local Government
Regulation 2012 (setting an amount for each different type of non-current physical asset below which the
value of an asset of the same type must be treated as an expense).

It has previously been determined that the threshold for capitalisation of asset classes other than land is
$5,000. These details form part of Note 1 to the Financial Statements.
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31.

ASSESSMENT OF PERFORMANCE IN IMPLEMENTING OPERATIONAL PLAN
FOR 2015/16 FINANCIAL YEAR

No  Task/Activity Assessment of performance in implementing
Operational Plan for 2015-16 financial year
FINANCE
1 Enhance access to financial information. . More users able to operate financial systems and locate relevant
documentation

2 Timely preparation of Financial Statements | «  Finalise Financial Statements within legislative timeframes and achieve
and resolution of recommendations. unqualified audit

3 Review full cost pricing models to ensure | o Review completed model and aim for more accurate cost allocation
equitable  allocation of costs across
departments.

4 Continue to review and document internal | More transparent procedures and more efficient processes
processes to establish an improved level of
control and transparency.

5 Ensure long-term asset management planning | e Compliance with LGA 2009 and provision of models to inform decisions

and financial planning is updated to support
financial sustainability.

regarding project priorities

DEVELOPMENT & GOVERNANCE

6

Continued development of the new Mareeba
Shire Planning Scheme.

Planning Scheme adopted by Council

Progress the sale of all land within the
Chillagoe Industrial Estate

In April 2016 Council advertised 11 lots for sale by tender at the Chillagoe
Industrial Estate. Tenders closed on 17 May 2016. Of those 11 lots, offers were
accepted for a total of 6 lots. Further unsolicited offers were received for the
remaining 5 lots. Of the original 11 lots, 7 have sold, 1 is under contract and 3
are subject to an offer to purchase.

SYSTEMS AND CUSTOMER SERVICE

8

Upgrade Corporate records Management
System (Technology One ECM).

ECM 4.03 has been successfully deployed with the new version going live on 22
June 2016. Development of the system is ongoing with a focus on improving
integration with Council’s Praperty and Rating system.

Develop 3-5 year ICT Strategy.

Gravelroad Group Pty Ltd has been chosen as the successful respondent to the
EO| process. Work will commence in 1% half FY17 to develop the relevant
strategy.

10

Develop and Data Protection

Strategy.

implement

Council’s future data protection strategy forms a key component of the ICT
strategy referred to in point 9. For the foreseeable future the existing off site
data replication process will be maintained.

11

Investigate the mobile delivery of corporate
information systems.

The necessary infrastructure to support Technology One’s CiAnywhere
technology has been deployed as part of the ECM upgrade project. Any future
work to provide mobile access to Council’s information systems will be
predicated on the outcome of the ICT strategy.

12

Investigate enhancements to Enterprise Asset
Management (EAM) systems.

The Embedded Mapping and GIS Synchronisation components of the
Technology One - Enterprise Asset Management product has been deployed.
Further investigation into the Defects module is ongoing.

13

Build mausoleum wall and lawn beam at
Mareeba New cemetery.

The construction of the mausoleum wall has been completed.
The construction of the lawn beam has been postponed until FY17.

COMMUNITY WELLBEING

14

Assist with Service Level Review.

All service areas of the Community Wellbeing Group were comprehensively
reviewed to gain efficiencies.

15

Update the long term community plan.

Due to the local government elections, updating the long term community plan
will be held over to 2016/17 and Community BBQs will be held in towns and
districts inviting input on community issues from residents.

16

Develop a Community Wellbeing Strategy.

This strategy will be completed in 2016/17 after the community plan has been
updated with community input.

17

Develop an external community engagement
policy and strategy.

Due to other operational priorities and staff vacancies this policy is still being
developed for consideration by Councillors in 2016/17.

18

Review the Community and Recreation
Leasing Policy and develop a Community
Facilities Register for the updated policy.

Review of the policy commenced in April 2016 and due to the complexity of the
issues, further financial modelling was prepared for consideration by
Councillors. The policy is due for completion in 2016/17.

19

Transfer externally funded community support
services to suitable not for profit community
organisations.

The following funded community services have been successfully transitioned
to community management:

- Streetto Home

- Homestay

- Partners in Recovery

- Youth Connections Program
TCASS will be transitioned to community management from 1 July 2017.
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The smooth relocation of the Kuranda Library to the Kuranda Community
Precinct was celebrated on Saturday 21 November 2015 amidst much
excitement and great anticipation. Community and library user feedback
regarding the new library facility has been positive.

The Kuranda Community Precinct was refurbished with the car park upgrade
completed and the building refurbished to relocate the Kuranda Library and
Customer Service Centre. Public nominations for membership of the Advisory
Committee were called and the new Committee was appointed, made up of
four continuing members and two new members. The Advisory Committee is
developing a Strategic Plan for the future development of the precinct. New
historical and site signage has been installed at the Precinct.

Council submitted the completed application within the set timeframe, but has
since been advised that the assessment period has been extended for 2 years.

This project will be completed once information from the long term
assessment plan is completed and information from the Department of
Housing and Public Works becomes available.

A comprehensive rent review was completed resulting in a staged approach to
increasing rents for community housing for seniors.

Economic Development priorities have been identified and negotiations
commenced with strategic economic development partners for assistance with
projects and activities associated with the priorities. One of the priorities is the
development of online resources to show-case the shire assets for investment
attraction.

Two large-scale developments have seen a recent expansion of the Park.
Consequently Council decided to not proceed with implementing the
marketing strategy but has continued to promote the Park on the Council
website and in relevant publications.

A Mareeba Shire Library Services Strategy has been adopted.

The development of a community data base commenced in December 2015 in
partnership with government agencies and community services and continues
to expand.

Council supports and contributes to the e-Community Newsletter developed
and distributed by Mareeba Community Centre.

20 Relocate Kuranda Library and Customer
Service Centre to become anchor tenant in
Kuranda Community Precinct.

21 Develop Kuranda Community Precinct.

22 National Registration System Accreditation for
aged housing.

23 Conduct an assessment to determine the
future management of the housing stock.

24 Conduct a housing rent review.

25 Develop an Economic Growth Strategy
including  investment  attraction  that
capitalises on the shire's opportunities for
economic  growth and leverages off
partnerships.

26 Mareeba Industrial Park Marketing Strategy.

27 Library Strategy.

28 Compile a Community Directory.

29 Distribute an e-Community newsletter
quarterly.

30 Davies Park/Firth Park/Eales Park Community

Management Model.

User groups associated with the new sports facilities being constructed at
Davies and Firth Parks with grant funds have developed an MOU for this
project which will form the basis of a future community management model
for the operation of these parks.

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

31 Comprehensive review of position levels to
ensure organisational consistency in line with
the QLGI Award 2014 and the new MSC
Certified Agreement. Review and develop HR
policies and practices to ensure the needs of
the Council workforce are met.

The comprehensive review of position levels to ensure consistency with the
QLG Award 2014 and the new MSC Certified Agreement was completed during
the year.

A review of HR paolicies and practices was also completed, however this work is
ongoing to ensure best practices are put in place and the evolving needs of the
Council workforce are met.

32 Provide high level advice and support to the
Executive Management Team in the
implementation of the new Certified
Agreement for Council employees, including
information and training  sessions for
employees.

High level advice to management and the Council workforce, regarding the
application of the MSC Certified Agreement 2014-2017 is ongoing.
The decision by the State government to direct the QIRC to make further
changes to the QLGI Award means that further changes in the industrial
relations arena as it relates to Council employees, can be expected.

As a result of the review of the award and proposed changes to the Industrial
Relations Act, it is expected that Council will be required to negotiate a new
Certified Agreement in the 2016-2017 year. Until that time the current
agreement will apply.

33 Identify training and skills needs for Council’s
workforce including development and delivery
of the Ganger Development Program and
Leadership/Management training program.
Ensure all training is delivered within budget
allocations.

Training and skills needs continue to be reviewed with training sessions
delivered to employees by both internal and external providers, as required.
The Ganger Development Program (GDP) has focused on electronic
communications skills with a number of follow-up sessions held to reinforce
the training. This was identified as a high priority area going forward.

In house leadership training for managers and supervisors was delivered with
an initial focus on employee performance management. The training was
conducted in conjunction with the implementation of the new Performance
Review Program.

Employee Code of Conduct Refresher training was completed during the year.

34 Ongoing monitoring and review of WHS
policies, procedures and systems to protect

the health and safety of Council's employees.

Monitoring and review of WHS policies, procedures and systems is ongoing.
Managers are continuing to be involved in ensuring improvement at an
operational level.
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Although the number of incidents reported was slightly higher than the
previous year, the duration of injuries and time lost was significantly less. This
resulted in a reduction in Council's WC insurance premium.
A final audit of the WHS Management System (SafePlan) by LGW in November
2015 resulted in a score of 76% which is a silver level award.

35 Implement the Drug and Alcohol Policy with | The HR Take 5 on the Drug and Alcohol Policy and the Drug and Alcohol Testing
comprehensive awareness training for all | Procedure was completed by workers and Council contractors.
employees and the commencement of testing. | Initial random testing was conducted in April and May 2016. Incident and

reasonable cause based testing has also been conducted with no non-negative
results being recorded.

WORKS

36 Undertake capital roadworks and drainage | The 2015/16 Capital Works Program was completed 30/06/2016 with the
projects in accordance with approved capital | exception of the Keegan Street extension project and the 15/16 Gravel Resheet
works schedule. Program. These projects will be completed by the end of August and the end of

October respectively.

37 Undertake bitumen roads reseal program in | The 2015/16 Reseal Program was completed early May 2016.
accordance with budget allocation. The program was delivered on time and under budget realising savings of

$200,000.

38 Undertake Parks & Gardens capital works | All Parks & Gardens capital projects were completed by early June 2016. Works
projects in accordance with approved capital | were on time and within budget.
works schedule.

TECHNICAL SERVICES

39 Continue the development of asset | The MSC Asset Management Strategy is nearing completion. The strategy is the
management plans for all infrastructure asset | parent document for the asset management plans and demonstrates how
classes. Council intends to meet the Local Government Act 2009 requirements around

long term asset management planning.

Development of Asset Management Plans (AMPs) are progressing and it is
aimed to start workshopping them with Council prior to the 2017-18 Capital
Works Program planning.

40 Purchase and implement a Vehicle | The Vehicle Management System has been installed, and Council is working
Management System. with the supplier to address the teething issues.

WATER & WASTE

41 Mareeba Wastewater Treatment Plant - | Council was successful in securing an additional $1,500,000 in grant funding
explore alternative design options to provide | through the Queensland Government's Building Our Regions (BOR) program to
an acceptable solution at less cost and | supplement 51,095,000 funding through the Royalties for Regions Program
continue to pursue the possibility of obtaining | (R4R), $6,000,000 in funding from the Federal Government's National Stronger
State Government funding for the new plant | Regions Fund (NSRF).
and investigate other funding avenues that
may be available. The R4R funding is the pivotal 17 stage of a two stage process to upgrade the

Mareeba Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) and includes construction of
the final 1.1 km section of a duplicate rising main, which was completed by
Celtic Construction and Utility Services in February 2016 and construction of a
packaged inlet works which is being delivered in 2016/17 by Bilfinger Water
Technologies.

The BOR and NSRF funding has been allocated to undertake the Stage 2 works,
which include construction of new biological nutrient removal treatment
process and installation of sludge management infrastructure. The successful
contractor, Downer, has been engaged to design and construct a two-basin
Sequence Batch Reactor (SBR) which will provide benefits in terms of capacity
for high wet weather flows, high effluent quality, operational flexibility and
reliability whilst providing the best value for money. The contractor mobilised
to site in May 2016 and construction is due for completion in 2016/17.

42 Water meter replacement program and | Water meter replacement program and automated water meter reading device
completion of Automated Meter Reading | (AMR) implementation program was completed across the water benefited
Equipment. area except for 73 difficult installations.

43 Construction of a new water reservoir at | Council applied for and received a grant from the State Government under the
Kuranda. Building Our Regions Program Round 1 towards the Kuranda Suburban Water

Security Project. The grant is to construct 150KL reservoir at Hilltop Close to
supplement the existing 350KL reservoir and construct a 500KL reservoir at
Masons Road.

44 Mareeba Landfill - construct a new Leachate | Preliminary design was completed for the Leachate Lagoon, however due to

Pond. the hydraulic engineering complexity and foreseeable operational issues that
the lagoon presented, the leachate will now be directed from the landfill to the
new Wastewater Treatment Plant via a leachate balance tank situated at the
old Wastewater Treatment Plant site.

45 Wastewater reticulation pumps upgrade | Xylem Water Solutions was successful with their submission for the
schedule. refurbishment of sewerage pump stations. All pump station upgrade work was

completed by January 2016. Maintenance works to begin from January 2016.
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46 Water, Wastewater and Waste - undertake | Council undertook several capital projects for the 2015 -16 financial year.
capital works projects in accordance with | Projects completed, or substantially completed, as at 30 June are:
approved capital works schedule.
Mareeba, Wastewater Treatment Plant Design and Construction awarded to
Downer Utilities Australia P/I. Initial clearing began May 2016;

Mareeba, Wastewater Treatment Plant Critical Infrastructure Upgrade -Rising
Main to Treatment Plant site completed at the end of March by Celtic
Construction & Utility Services;

Final stage of Historian (SCADA) Project completed;

Kuranda, Telemetry Network installation completed;

Kuranda, Wastewater Treatment Plant - Sludge Management Upgrade -
Abergeldie Constructions began site works in June with the delivery of the Belt

Press underway;

Mutchilba and Julatten, Waste Transfer Station concrete lined bunding areas
completed;

Mareeba Landfill erosion and sediment control work on cells 2 and 3 batters
was completed by Revegetation Contractors Pty Ltd in January 2016;

Mareeba Landfill additional Groundwater Wells installed September and
October 2015 by Golder Associates.
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Mareeba Shire Council

Stat t of Comprehensive |
For the ysar ended 30 June 2016

2018 2015
Note $ $
Income
Revenue
Recurrent revenue
Rates, levies and charges 3a) 26,417,715 25,210,894
Fees ard charges 3m) 1118324 1,213,506
Intarest received 3e) 1,688,008 596 445
Sales revonue ) 2,742,685 11,271,667
Osher revenue o) 5,140 526 4,508 920
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donstions 4a) 13004904 8541113
51,081,363 52,342 550
Capital revenue
Grants, di and ab) 8,508 534 5376248
Total revenue 65,589 807 57,714,796
Capital income
Gan on disposal of non-current assets 5 412140
Total Income e 56 599,807 58,130,037
Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits 6 (17,006.422) (19322,817)
Materals and services 14 (19,528,.558) (18,125.411)
Finance costs 8 (339,350) (514,158)
Depreciation and amontsation 14,16 19.418,273) (8,939,401)
T (46.200.805) (46,001,787
Capital expenses 9 (327,782) (460,240)
Total expenses (46,621,387 {47,382 027)
Net result 12,668,510 10,768,610
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Increase / [decrease) In asse! revaluation surplus 4168873
Total comprehensive Income for the year 17,137 383 10,768 910
_ —
The above statement should be read in conjunction with the o g notes and Sigl Accounting

Policwes
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Mareeba Shire Councll
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2016

208 2018
Note $ $

Current assets
Cash and cash equivaients 10 25,754 380 22,626,560
Short term nvestments " 12,000,000
Trade and othor receivables 12 8,161,046 13,182,909
Invertories 13 3,047 464 3,867,711
Total current assets 49,962 900 39,777,180
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivadies 12 28,344 8,750
Property, plant and equipment " 353,203,827 338,531,728
Intangible sssets 6 ! 268,600 1,533 768
Total non-cusrent assets 354 081 871 341,074 244
Total sssets 404,844,771 580,851,424
Current llabllities
Trace and other payables 17 8,563,009 7,100,118
Bomowings 18 360,679 156,851
Provisions 20 5,820,285 1,330,529
Total current llsbilities 14,782,973 8,598 459
Non-current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 17 1,068 442 940 D48
Borrowings 18 6,705,903 2,085130
Provisions 20 3,822,940 7,822.707
Total non-current Habliitios 11,367 375 10,027 865
Total liabilities 26,180,348 19,524,384
Net community assets 378 454 423 351,327 040
Community equity
Ratained surplus 374,295,550 361,327,040
Asset Revaluatan Surplus 4,168 873
Total community equity 378,484,423 351,327 D40
The sbove statement should be read in cony with the ying notes and Signif A 0
Foicses

QAO
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Asset Retained surplus Total
Revaluation
Reserve
Note ] § s
Balance as at 1 July 20158 361,327,040 361,327,040
Net resut - 12.968,510 12,668,510
Incease in asset revaluation suiplus 4,188 873 - 4168873
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,168,873 12,968,510 17,137,383
Balance as at 30 June 2016 4,168,873 374,205 580 378,484 423
Balance as at 1 July 2014 350.558 130 350,558,130
Nel resut 10,763 910 10,768,910
Total comprehensive income for the year - 351,327 040 10,768 90
Balance as at 30 June 2015 161327 040 381327, 04
The above sintement should be read in conjunclion with tha ying notes and y of Significant
Arenunting Aolicias
Page 5
Page 57
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2016
2018 2016
Note $ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Racaipts from customers 38.072,48% 50,489,507
Cash transferred from continuing Councll 5,605,030 3,000,000
Pay 1o liers and y (37.433,884) {39,176.834)

6,243 655 14312763
Interest recewed 953,934 566,448
R grants and 13,994 104 9,541,113
Berrowing costs 209.791) (435 487)
Net cash inflow (outf) from » 20,981,901 23,064 830
Cash flows from investing activities
Paymants for property. plant and equipment (17.055,381) (13,958 440)
Payments for intangdle assets (23,485) (50.778)
Proceads from sa'e of property plant and equipment 52,787 484 145
Grants, L and 6.343,283 5,376,246
w In short-term k (12.000,000) 5,000,000
Net cash inflow from h i) (22.682 §75) (3.148.827)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceads from borrowings 5000413 850 310
Repayment of borrowings {138,307) (5.141 985)
Repayments made on finance leases (32,500) {32,500)
Net cash Inflow from fi 9 4 828 608 (4,185 .175)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent held 3127832 18,660,837
Cash and cash at the begl g of the year 22526559 59657122
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 10 25,754,301 22 626,550
The above staternent should be reed in ion with the ying noles and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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1 Significant accounting policies

1.A  Basis of preparation

These general purpose fnancial statemants are for the penod 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 and have been prepared In

np with the of the Local G Act 200§ -wuwmwmz
sently, these fi have beon prep. in with all 2 a
A A P and other auth ssued by the A G
Standards Board,
These financial have been p under the cost except for the following:
- cortain classes of y. plant and i which are ot fair value
Recurrent/capital classification
Rev and are po a8 ¢ of "capital® in the Statemnent of Comprehensive Income on the
following basis:

Captal Revenue includes grants and subsidies receved which are tied o specific projects for the replacemant or Lpgrace
of existing non-current assets and /or mvestment in new sssets. !t aiso includes non-cash contributions which are usualy
i assets from
The following transactions are classified as either “Captal Income” o “Capital Expanses” depending on whether they
result In accounting gains or losses

- dsposal of non-curront assats

- d'scourt rate adi to

. of y. plant and (mote 1.N)

All other revenve and expenses have boen classified as “recurrent”

1B Statement of compliance

Yhﬂ-mmf'\Mlmmwnwmhw msued by the
MM)anmewmsmmMMhhw

reporting period. mwnmhm-mmm‘ 9 Iinclude

for not-for-profit entities which are with Financial (IFRS), to the extent these

Inconsistencies are applied. thase fnancial statements do not compéy with IFRS. The main impacts are the offselting of
rovaluation and impaitment gains and losses within a class of assets. and the timing of the recognition of non-reciprocal
grant revenue.

1.€  Constitution

Maresba Shire Council ("Councl™) s undor the Q: Looa Act 2009 ard s domiciled in
Australia

LD Currency

Council uses the A fan dollar as its functional y and its y

1LE  Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards
In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations msued by the Austraiian
Accounting Standurds Board (AASEH) that are relevant to s operations and effective for the cusrent reporting perioc. The
acoption of tho new and revsad Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in any matedal changes to Councifs
accounting policies.

cerified statements
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Mareeba Snire Councl has not applied any A and that have been issued but
are not yet offective with the exception of AASB 2015-7 o Austrakan A g Stanch - Fair Value
D¥sclosures of Not-for-Profit Pubic Sector Entities.  Generally council applies and in

with their dates. The of AASB 2015-7 has exempted counch from the
disch of f and analysis for some valuations categorised within Leve! 3 of the fair value

hieraechy.

»uanunmwdnmnw AASS § Financial instrumonts and AASB 20156 Amendments o

] ng Reiatod Party Di: o Notfor-Profit Public Secior Entties are the only
naw nting -n-mn date that are expected 10 have a material impact on councils financial
statementa.

Fram 1 July 2016 AASE 124 Related Party Disciosures will apply 1o Councll. This means that Councll will disclose more
Information about refated parties and transactions with those rolated parties. Council is cumently preparing for this change
by Kentifying related parties. Related partios will include the Mayor, councillors and some councl staff. In addition, the

close family members of those pecple ard any organisations that they control or are associated with will be ciassified as

refatod parties.

AASB 9, which replaces AASB 138 Financie) iy and Is effe for 0 periods

uammmorm-nmnzuﬂ-mmuwmy YhmnnnuudMSBOhﬁmn
for the 3 with i ial assats. Under the now

nqmmuthbucumu of fa i M in AASE 139 will be replaced with two measurement

categories. fair value and amortisad cost and financial assats will only be able to be measured at amortised cost where
very specific conditions are met.

Council is still reviowing the way that revenue is measured and recognised to identify whethar AASS 15 Revenue from
Controcts with Cusfomers will have a materdal impact. To date ne impact has been identfied.
Msswumm‘uumymn-nmnwmm AASB G [ and a
number of and robust for the recognition measurement and
Mndmmmmm

AASB 16 Laases becomes mandatory for annual periods baginning on or after 1 January 2019 (with early sdoption
permited) and in essence requines a lessee 1o’ mcogrise all kase assals and g those ntly clsssed
as leases) on the of position, Mwuummmmmm

of lease assets and interest on isase lladilities as expenses over the (ease tenm; and
upamhwmwmdummmc portion within fin 9 and interest {which
entities can choose to present within or -] i with of any other intorest pakd)
in the statement of cash Nows.

Other Austraiian A o and | which were issued a1 the date of authorisation of the
|mmmmmmmmnumwm-mwmmmmmmm

Critical ant! o and key of

In the application of Counciis g policias. g hmnmmmm
mmmm:mmﬂmdm“mmmnmmuwmmwm The astimates
and sssociated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factons that are considarnd (o be refevant
Actua’ resuts may differ from these estimates. The estimstes and ongaing 8sSUMPLions 878 reviewed on an ongoing

basis. R to 9 are ised in the period in which the estimate is revisad and in fiture
perods as relevant

Judgerents, este and that have o igr effect ase outlined in the following financial
statement rotes.
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Val and of property, plant and equipment - Note 1 N, Note 14 and Note 15
Provisions - Note 1.R,1.T and Note 20
Contingent liabilties - Note 22

1.6 Ravenus

Rates, levies, grants and other revenue are recognisad as revenue on receipt of funds or earfier upon uncondiional
entitiement to the funds.

Rates and levies
Where rate monies are ived priof to the ofthe plievying petiod, the amount is recognised as
ravenue in the period in which they are d rates are atthe of the rating

pencd

Grani ang subsdes

Grants, subsidies and Abutions that are in nasure are Q' a8 revanue in the yesr in which
Council obtains control over them. Council accounts for these restrictions using an internal managerment accounting
systern Intemal restrictions that have been placed on Councifs cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in Note 10

Non-cash contribulons
Non-cash contritutions with a value in excess of the 9’ i are Q! a8 revenue and as non-current
assets Non-cash contribe below the ane as and
Pmm-mummbmmmmwmnmwdmm . water and

and park eq as revenue when the b “on {ie
amummdmmwmwvmmm and there s data in the
form of drawings and plans to the app and values of such assets. All non-cash

mmwmdmhvnlwdummmwmmoﬂm

Cash contributions
D pers also pay charges for trunk infrastructure o construct assets such as roads and footpaths and to
connect new property o 1o water and in the local g area Where agreements
IntmnComdandmdwnmmhmmmonmmmmmwdma
Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from C these pnsed as revenue when the related
servics obligatons are futfilied
mnmwnauwwmmmmumd g existing and water supply and

rd, with Councifs g scheme policies. (Headworks nclude pumping stations,
mmumm m-um.i-\nn) Cnchmmcnmum'napvnmmmmmnmmn
m-muusa 18 there 18 no perk with these

these cash are as income when received

Sales (ovonye

Sale of geods is recognised when the signficant nsks and rewarcs of ownership are transfermed to the buyer, generally
when tha customer has teken undisputed delivery of the goods.

Councit generates revenues from contract and ie works, which g " of material
mmwmnnmwmmundwmm Contract revenue and sesocsled costs are
mnmuhmmmmdmdmmamynu g date. R s a
the fair value of in relation to that activity mmumsmbm
sarvice in itis Inwm itties and 15 o s revenue in the period when the service is
performed.

Fees and chares

Feas and charges am upon dit: 1o the funds. G this is upon of the
relovant or issuing of the 0 notice or when the service 3 provided.

Page 9
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Other revanue
Council's main sowcas of ‘other revenue’ ar waste management revenuo and 0ase INCOME. LEase INCOMA IS MMCognsed
on & periodic basis over the lease term. Waste | 0 revenue is ar based on the services provided at the

poting date 19 the relevant ag
1H mssets and

Counct recognises a financial asset o a financial lability in &s Statement of Financial Posiion when, and only when,

Councll becomes a party to the of the i

Msreeda Shire Counci has and the assets and fi heid st balance date as

follows.

Eipanchai assats

Cash and cash (Note 1 1), R bles (Note 1.J) and Investments (Note 1 M) are

measured af amortised cost

Einancial liabiiies

Fiance lease - st cost (Note 1. P}

Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 1.0)

B s - d at cost (Note 1.5)

Financial assets and Snancial an y from each other and offsatting has not been applied

All other dsclosures refating to the and jal risk of ae n

Note 27

11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipiad but not banked ot the yesr end,
deposits heid at call with financial nstitutions, other short-term, highly liquid investrments with original maturities of three
months of less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes n value

1J  Recelvables
Trade ‘vables are atthe due al the me of sale of service delivery (e the agreed purchase price /
contract price  Sattlament of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date

The y of s P y and ¥ there is that Councl will not be able to
collect ail amounts due, ihe carrying amount is reduced for impairment.  The loss is recognised in finance costs.

B Council is under the of the Local Govemment Act 2009 to sell an owner's property to
rocover cutstanding rate debts, Council does not impair any rates receivablos

Loans and advances ara racognisad in the same way as other With the of the B
connection scheme which has a repayment term of 15 years, terms are usually a maximum of five years with interest
charped at commwrcial rates. Security is not nornally obtained,

The value of loans to 9 s inNote 12. Loans ace recognised at their face values. Terms
are for a maximum of 10 years with no interest charged. Security is not normally obtaned.

LK Inventories
Stores and raw materials are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and include, where applicable, direct
materia’. direct iabour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads Costs are assigned on the bas's of
weightsd average cost

Page 10
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For the year ended 30 June 2016

1L

[\ B A

Inventaries held for dstribution are.

- goods to be suppled at no or nominal, charge, ano

- goots 10 be used for the provis«on of services at no of nominal, charge

These goods are valued at cost. adjustod, when applicable, for any loss of service potertial

Aard held for resale
Land acquired by Council with the intention of reseling it (with or without further development) is classified as inventory
This land Is valued at the lower of cost or net value. As an y om, this land held for resale is treated as a

current asset. Procesds from the sale of this land will be recognised as sales revenue on the signing of a valid
unconditonal contract of sale.

Non current assets held for sale
erms of property, plant and equipment are reclassined as NoN-current assats Neld for sa@ when the carmying amount of
these assets will be racovered prncipaly through a sales rather than continuing use. Non-current assets

classified as held for sale are available for immediate sale In their present condition and management believe the sale is
highly probable. Non-cutrent assets heid for sale are measured at the lower of thair carrying amount and fair value kess
cost 1o seld and are not depreciated. On the eventual sale of these assets a gain or loss is recognised

Investments
Term deposits in cxcess of three months are reported as short term investments, with deposs of less than three months
being repored as cash equivalents

Property, plant and equipment

Esch class of plant and s stated at cost of far value. items of plant and equipment with &
total value of less than $5,000, and mfrastructure assets and buildings with a total value of less than $5,000 are treated as
an exp in the year of i Al other items of preperty. plant and are

The classes of prope-ty, plant and equipment recegnised by Counce are:
Land
Buildings
Plant and fleet
Infrastructure
Roed. dranage and briage network
Water

Sewerage
Othar infrastructire assots
Work in progress

Acquisition of assets
Acquisitions of sssats are intially recordes of cost  Cost 's determined as the fair value of the assets given as

plus costs o the " wg freight in. s lees and eng j design fees and
ali other establishment costs

Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues ot fair value by

Council valuation where that value exceeds the for the asset class, Falr value is the
price that would be recerved to sell the assot in an orderly market pi atthe
date

P QAD
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Direct tabour ang and an approp: proportion of incurred in the acquesition or construction of aassts
are treated as captal ure. Assels under ction are not untd they are compisted and
commissioned, at whch time they are reclassified from work in progress to the operty, plant and eq

class

Routne operating maintenance, repair costs and minar 1o the capactty and useful ife of the

non-cyrment assel is expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of a major component of an asset
to maintain s service potential is capitalised

Exp incurred in with Natursl Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements on road assels is analysec %o

whether the diture s capital in nature  The anatysis of the expenditure requires Counce enginesrs to
review the nature and extent of expenditure on a giver esset For exampie, expenditure that patches a road s penerally
mainienance in nature, whereas a kerb rebuiid i treated as capital. Matenal expenditure that extends the useful ife of
renews the service potential of the asset & caphakssd.

Valuation

Land, buildings, road, drainage, brdge, water, and other assels are on the

oass, mmmu.mmwmusauohw Plant and Equipment . Plant and fleel. and work in progress se
measured at cost

MNon-current physical assets messured at fair value are revalued. wheve required, 5o that the camying amount of each class
mummnulmmlwnﬂrmulﬁu\nnm g cate Thisis by engaging

ind valuers o hhvsuhmmﬂm pant and equipment assets al leas!
wmmtywsﬂlmhnmmvﬂw y ly sighting a riative sample of Council assets across
nmmmmwmmmdmmdumuma—dwm
veluations are also conducted using 3 suftablo index being otherwise performad on an annual basis where there has been
& material variation in the index

mmnwmwummdmmnmnnmmﬁmumw
surpius. except to the extent it L] for the class p as an
ummmhamm-mﬂmmhﬁm-ﬂnvﬂummmh-ﬂﬂntmﬁlﬂrm Hany, h
the revaiustion surplus of that assel class

On tuath 'y with the change in the carrying amount of the asset
mrymmmnumolwmmhullu

Both wster and sewersge asset classes are classtiad ‘or valuation purposas It above ground and below ground asset

groups. Above ground asssts have a gy for o below ground mssets A comprehensive
revaluation wiil be compieted for both these groups at isast once every 4 years but nat nacassarily in the same reporting
period.

Details of valuers and hods af vak are o in Nate 15

Capital work in grogress

The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by Councs Includes the cost of purchased services, materia's
direct lsbour and an appropriate propartion of Rbour averheads.

Reprecialien

Land is not depreciated s it has an unimited useful life Deprecstion on other property. plant and equipmaent assets is
calculated on a straight-ine basis 50 as to write-off the net cost or revalued amourt of aach depreciable asset, less fis
estimated residual va'ue, progressively over ils estimated useful ie to Council, Management belleve that the siraight-line
basis approprinkely refiacts the pattern of consumptian of all Council assets

e
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Assets are deprecisted from the date of acquisition or, in respect of intarrally constructed assets, from the ime an asset s
compisted and commissioned ready for use.

Whnere assets have i W s that are subject to regular replacement, these components are
mmammmmuwbmmu Any diture that the

capacity or service potential of an ssset is capitalised and the new dep amount is mﬂ- ']
useful Iife of the asset to Council.

Major spares pi = for slar assets that ame above the asset Q! am d and
ceprecated on the same Dasis as the assel to which they relate

The amaunt of impr to0r o0 tand Is all ively over the useful lives
of the improverments to Councll or the unexpired period of the lease, mtmm

Dy usetul ives and residual values of plant and assots aro at
the end of each g period and d where ,wmmwnmmovm'm
physical wear and tear, or Q!

performed as part of the annual valuation process for assets a cumln cost ae used

to estimate the useful lves of these assets at each reporting date. mdnwawmmmm
class of asset are shown in Note 14

Intangibie assets
Intanpible assets with a cost or atner value g $10,000 are 9 a8 gible assets in the fnancial
staternents, tems with 3 lesser vaiue being exponsed

useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjustad where appropriate. Datais of the estimated useful lives assigned to sach ciss of mtangible assets are shown in
Note 18

Leases

Leases of plant and equipment under which Council as e y ad the risks and
benefits incidental 10 the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership, are classified as finance ieases. Other
leases, whera substantialy af the nsks and benefits remain with the Bssor. are cassified as operating leases

Einance leases ns lesses

Where Council entars into a finance loase as lessee Coundil recognises an asset equal to the lower of fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Thh-lhbm.annmuhum-
amount. Lease fiabilities are reduced by repayments of principal. The interest of the lease pay
charged es finance costs. The asset s accounted for on the same Dasis as other assets of the same class. cmw
rentals are written off as an expense in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating wases

Payments made under g Ieases sre In equal over the 9 periods covered by the
lease temn, mmmmm-mmmmmmmdmnummm
leased property.

Payables
Tmmnmnmednm:ummmnmnmw
purchass/contract price net of appicable discounts other than Q owing are and
are penerally settied on 30 day terms.

Liabilities - employee benefits
Liabiities are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual isave and long service save n
respost of services by the emp up to the reporting date

Salangs and wages

A labdity for salanies and wages i recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay
mies in respect of employses’ services up 1o that date  This Kabiity represents an acorued expense and is reported in
Nete 17 as a payable

e ey
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Annygl leave
A liabiltty for annual leave is recognised. mmmannummummnwmwmﬂw
and salary levels and include relsted not 10 be settled within 12 months sre

calcutated on projecied future wege and salary leveis and related omployes on-costs, and are discountod to present
values This fabdity ropresents an accrued expense and is reparisd in Note 17 as a payadle.
As Council does not have an unconditional right to defer this Rabiity beyond 12 months annual lesve is cassfied as 8
current llability.
Superannuaon
The sup for the petiod is the amount of the contridution Council makes to the

ation plan which p benefits 1o its employses. Details of those arrangements are set out In Note 23,

Long service lnave

A liability for long sarvice leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outfiows, to be made in
respect of services d by up to the g date The value of the liadiity i caiculmted using current pay
rates and projected future Increases in those res and includes selated employee on-costs. The estimates are adustea for
the probability of the y g in Councif's or other which would result in
mmmmwmuwm wmmmnmmmmamn-nnmm
date, and the resull is gscounted 10 present value The intecest rates gl

securites at the reporting date am used to di the future cash outfios 10 their present vake luu‘om,
s reported in Note 20 as a provision

Whare smployees have met the prerequisite length of senvice and Councll does not have an unconditional right to Gefer
this liadility beyond 12 months, long service leave is classified as a current liabillty. Otharwise It Is classified as 4 ron
current lisbiity.

Borrowings and borrowing costs
B g are initialty at fair value plus ary divectly atiribulable transaction costs. Subsequent to inkial
these are at cost.

In accordance with the Local Governnent Reguiation 2012 Councll adopts an annual debt policy that sels out Council's
plannec borrowings for the next nine years. Council's current policy is 10 only bocrow for capital projects and for a term no
longer than the expected ife of the asset. Councll aiso aims jo comply with the Q. Treasury C: ]
borrowing guidelines and ensure that sustainability Indicators remain within acceptabie levels at all times

All barrowing costs are expansed in the period in which they are incurred.

Restoration provision

A provision s made for the cost of restoration in respect of refuse dumps whar it 5 probable Councl wel! be labie, or
required, to Incur such a cost on the cessation of use of these facilities. The p Is atthe cost of
the work required, discounted to current day values using the imevest 1ates g to C

guaranteed securities with 3 maturtty date g 1o the date of the

Refuse dump restoration

The provision represents the present veiue of the anticipsted future costs assoclated with the closure of the dump sites,
decontamination and monitoring of historical residues and ‘eaching on these sées The calculation of this provision

requires such as of aile closure dates, available technologies ang
engineering cost estmates These uncertsinties may rasult in future actua wmmmammm
provded. Because cf the long-torm nature of the iabity, the most y n Is the
costs that will be incurred. Tmmwuﬂhdmymnmnwmmwmmn
facts ang at the time. that the alies will cicse in-
Ok Mareeba Landfil - closed
Arnaden Trench - 2035
Chillagce Trench - 2035
and that the wil accur prog y over yaan

Page 14
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1.U  National compstition policy
Counci has reviewed its activities to identify its businass activities. Delails of these activities are disclosed in Note 28
1.V Taxation

Income of local Buthorities and public authorities is exempt from Cammonweakth taxstion. Counct! is subect to Fringe
Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax ('GST')
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2. Analysis of results by function
2{a) Compx of Council

The activities relating to the Council's components repodted on in Note 2(b) are as follows

and
The obj of p and services is for Council to be open, accountabie, transparent, deliver
value for money on ity provide timely and Infe o support sound

decision making and moet statutory

The Mayor, Councillors and Chief Exacutive Officer are included in governance

The Corporate Services function Finance, info Record and Human
Resources. Roles within this function inchude budget support, financial accounting, customer sarvice and
information technalogy services

Community services

The goal of community services is 10 ensure Council is & heaithy, vibrant, contemporary and connected community
Community services provide well aged and y facilities, and ensure the effective delivery of

cultural, heatth welfare, environmenital, recreational services and the promation of tourism

This function includes:
Libraries

Entertainmment venues

Scences and

Planning snd development
This function faciltates the shire's growth and prospertty through well planned and quality development. The

oy of pi g and is 10 ansure the Mareeba Shire Councll is well designed. officent and
faciitates growth yet also p the and natural of the Shire. This function inciudes
activities and sarvices refated to neighbourhood and regional W, and ape of pp
Procosses.
Works infrastructure
The objectve of the works nirastructure program s to ansure the community is servicad by a high quallty and
sffective road network. The function p and transport g the and

provision of the drainage network and provides maintenance for all parks and gardens.

Waste management
The goal of this function is to protect and suppor our y and natural er by sustanably maraging
refuse. The function provioes refuse collection and deposal servicas.

Water Infrastructure
The goa! of this program s 10 support b healthy, safe communiy through sustainable water services. This function
includes ail actvties relating to water

Sewerage infrastructure
This function protects and supports the health of our by y g el
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Maresba Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2016
3 Asalysis of results by function

For the year ended 39 June 2014
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206 2015
Nots § $
3 Revenus analysis
(a) Rates, levies and charges
General rates 15456 318 14,860,258
Separate rates 477 981 451,539
Watar 2712871 2,593,518
Water pton, rental and 2.049 046 1871279
Seworage 4165233 3.983.942
Waeste management 3,278,514 3,068,589
Total rates and wtilty chasge revenue 28,137 961 26,838,122
Less' Discounts (1,332,193) (1,255 445)
Less. Pensioner remissions. (388,053) (372,782)
20417715 25,210,694
(b) Fees and charges
Foos and chargos 1118324 1,213,506
1,118,324 1,213 508
(c) Interest recetved
Interest recaived from QTC 326474 125,768
Interest received from other sources (Inciuding term deposits) 1173485 317,801
Irfmrest rom overdue rates and utity charges 168,050 152,791
1,668 008 536 445
{d) Sales revenue
Contrect and recoverable works 2.742 685 11,271,667
Totsi sales revenue 2,742 685 11,271,687
The amount recognised as revenue for contract revenue during the financial period is the amount receivable in respect of nvoices
issued during the period. Thero are contracts in progress at the period end. The contract work cammied out Is either subject to
retentions or bank guaraniee.
(e) Other revenus
Waste 0 (from other 2,221.261 2,314,805
Flood inspections and associated costs 35038 454 304
Animal bmpounding 44.489
Leases and rental ncome 1,271,824 1,157 5%
Sale of scrap / surplus plant 87,881 117408
Legal recoveries 457 607 84086
Sade of goods/materials 57,685 ae.689
Fusl rebates 74.237 76,902
Brochure contributions 28878 44778
Prof¥(ioss) from sale of developed land 623,127 (8,988)
Other sundry revenue 228 400 219227
5,140 526 4,508,520
4  Grants, and
(a) Recurrent
State government subsidies, grants and comrbutions 980 501 8841136
C g and grants 13,013,513 899,977
T 13964104 8,541,113
(b) Capital
State government subsidies and grants 2318778 800,239
C g and grants 2,987 784 781,369
Contributions 1,036 822 1,080,181
Donated assets 2 A57

151

534
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
2016 2018
Note 5 S

Conditions over contributions
Contributions recognised as income during the reporting period and which were cbtained on the condition that they be expended in
a manner specfied by the contrbutor but had not been expended at the reporting date.
Non-reciprocal grants for axpenciture on capital 163,850 118
Ni | grants for exp on non-capital 220257 22733
414107 374452

§ Capital income
Gain /{loss) on disposal of non-current assets

Proceeds from the sale of land snd improvements 288 055
Proceeds from the sale of plant and squipment 182,827
Less: Book value of plant and equipment disposed of (89.641)
Total captal incoma - 412,140
Employee benefits
Total staff wages and salares 12,609,720 14 542 986
Counciliors' remuneration 417,914 402,432
Annual, sick and lcng service leave anttiements 3,104,590 3,254.515
Superannuation 23 1,722 633 1,768,204
17854757 19,989,23%
Othor employee related expenses 153,860 148,579
18,008,517 20,137,808
Less: Capttalisec amployee expensas (1,002.195) (614,891)
17,006 422 19,322,817

Council salary, and other afowances paid in respect of carmying out thew duties.
Tota! Council amployees at the reporting date: 2018 2018
Electod mombors 7 7
Administration staff 87 104
Depot and outdoors staff 14 120
Tatal full tne eaulvalent employees 218 231

2016 2018

Nots s $

Matorials and services
Al contractors exci hire of plant 8,767,576 3.636.420
Audit of annual financial staternents by the Auditor-General of 120,440 126,450
Queensiand
Bulk water purchsse 583,197 574792
De-amalgamation costs - 362,928
Electrioty 1,028 875 1,137 468
Fuels and oiis 626,586 BE84T4
Goods, materials and services 1,128,376 1,047,415
Hire of pant 2741700 3,178,778
insurance 675289 902,387
Lagal 603,185 183,896
Liconces, fess, subscriptions and memberships 726399 577,097
Professionaliconsutancy services 1,821,256 1,486,542
Rent, rates and leasing expenses 340770 348 507
Road for used for 20727 3,566,466
Other materials and servicas 311,084 116,888

16,528.559 18,125 411

Page 19
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2016 2016
Nots 3 (]
8  Finance costs
Finance costs charped by the O\ 152.033 287474
L ing of on pe 85478 168,013
Bank charges 57,759 54,734
impairment of Cebts 41,081 3837
330380 514,158
%  Capital expenses
Loss on write off of non-current assets
Write off af buildings 78,752 141,321
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment {52.787)
Less: Book value of property, plant anc equipment disposed of 80,530
Write o of roacs and bridges 191,517 271,881
Wrile off of sewerage 21.007 28,607
‘Write off of ofher infrastructure 8,355 18,331
Totsl caphal expenses 327,782 460,240
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash st bank 800 489 1,014,080
Cash at bank - Mayors Community Gift Fund Appeal 3,649 1815
Cash ficat 1,70 1,770
Petty cash 1,200 1,550
Deposfis af call 24,847,272 21 607 244
Balance per Statement of Cash Fiows 25.754,390 22,026,560

Councils cash and cash squiviients 8'e subject 10 @ number of restnctions Mat It amounts avalabie for diacretionary of fulure

use. These inciude

Extarnaily mposed exparditure restrctons at the reporting date

relate to the following cash assets

Unspent government grants and subsides 414107 374,452

Iintarnally mposed expanditurs restrictions at the reparting dater

Constrained works 837310 8,552,782

Future captal warks 7,722,655 7.701.0%

Future non-capital warks 08,497 7,184)

Total unspant restnciad cash 17,576,380 17627130

Cash and deposits al call are heid in various finarcial institutions in normal term and chagque

financial instutions have a short term credit rating of between A+ 1o A2

11 Short term Investments
Curent short lerm deposits 12 200.000
Total short term deposds 12,000,000
12 Trade and other receivables

Current

Rateabie revenue and utlity charges 1,607,758 3,343,821

Other debtors T.2r4 979 8,274376

Less impaiment (1.687)

GST recoverable/(payable) (27,085) 148 562

Loans and L] 4625 1,500

Prapayments 202,657 410,549
9,161,046 13,182,909

Non-current :

Loans and to 8, 344 8,750

28 344 8.750
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2018 018
Note § §

Inferest is charped on cutstanding rates st a rate of 11% per annum. No interest is charged on other ceblors. There s no
concentration of credil risk for rates and utiity charges, foes and other debtors recosvable

Loans relate to advances made to vanous sportng bodies. These [oans anse from time to time and are subject (o negotated
Interast rates. The credit tisk on these loans is conaidened low.

Movernent in accumuiated impairment losses (other deblors) s as

follows

Openng balance at taginning of perad 163,501

Additional impaimments recognised 1,887

Impaiments reversed 183 581)

Closing batance at 30 Juna veer
13 Inventories

Inventones held for sale
Miscelansous saleabie tems 2417

Inventories held for distribution

Plant end squipment slores 1,020,886
1,020,886

Land purchased for deveiopment and sale 2112378 2 544 050
Total Inventories 3,047 484 T

Page 21 QAD
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15 Fair value measurements
(1) Recog tfair value
Council measuros and rocognises the obowing assets at fair value on a recurring basis
Property, plant and equpment
Land
Buidings
Road, drainage ard bidge netwars.

Cound| does nol measure any Nabilbes al fak value on 8 recumng Dasis

Council has assats and labAItes which 8 not messursd at fak value, but for whlch fair valuss are Gsciosad n other notes.

ge aro L mmmmeummm The fair value of borrowings disclosod in note 19 is
vdad by the Q Treasury C and cash flows at balance cate (leved 2)
The carryng amounts of trade wnd tade are 0 appr Meir far values due 10 Meir shar-term nature (leved 2)

In accordance with AASS 13 tair value measurements are calegorisad on the following basis:

Fal vaiue based cn guoted prices (Lnadjusiod) In active markets for idantical assets or kabiltes (level 1)
Far value based on inpuls that are drectly of induectly observabie for the asset or labillty (evel 2)
Falr value based on unobservabla Inputs for the asset and kablity (eve! 3)

The ‘oliowng table fair valuve @8 either level 2 or level 3 in accordance with AASE 12, Councll doms nat have any assets or kabviities
moasurod at falr value which meet the criora for catogorsation as evel |

The falr values of the assets are using vah which y the use of data, where it is avallable, and mirimise e use
of entity spocfic estimates. If all sgnificant mputs required to fair value an asset are cbservabie, the ssset is inciuded in evel 2 11 one or more of the significant
lnp;--MMmeMMNM-MMWlM.Nm&MWM which are of & specialist nsture
for which Mers s no actve market for similar or identica! assets. These assets are valued using a and inputs.

The table presents Council's assets measured and recognised »t fsr value at 30 June 2016,

Lovel 2 Level 3 Total Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
{Sgrificant
other (Significant {Sgnificant other  (Significant
observadie unobiservable ocbservable unobscrvable
Note inputs) inputs) inputs) rous)
s ] s s s s
Recurring falr value 2010 2018 2016 2018 2015 015
Land 4 10,938 974 10,935,974 9602571 9,802,671
Butidings 1
- Commercal buildings 40,650413 40650413 38,083,351 38,083,391
Road. dreinage end bridgo network 200442800 209442609 203,544,595 208,544,595
Wader 14 42206233 42,206,233 40,530,146 40,630,148
Sewsrage 14 31,890,731 31,500,731 30,800,806 30,990,099
Ortar infrastructure 14 71168383 7,118383 5,740,680 6,740 860
10,935,974 331,000 480 341,945 434 9602671 318,952 651 329.505 322
QAO
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There ware no transfers between levels during Ihe year.
Counct's policy is 1o recognise transfors in and out of the far value herarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period

(1) Vatuation tochniques used to derive fair values for lovel 2 and level 3 valuations

The vaivations of Council's assets measured and recognised ot fair vaius were undentaken effective 1 January 2014, the date Councll was ro-established and
the date of transfer of assets from the de-amaigamating council Councl has conducted on analysis of the movement n applicable indices whare It has beon
caterminod that tio movement is matorial, the carying values of those assats at 30 June 2016 and additions since 1 January 2014 have been adjusied 1o

refiect this movement

(W) (a) Land (level 2)

Land fair valves wore by VM‘ Pty Lta, efloctive 1 January 2014, Land tair values have boeo measured by (he “Market
\por by Dwect C under AASS13. Lever 2 valualion nputs were ullised being sakes
mmmmmm-m wmumu-mmnmmumm The man inpul s the peice per square
metre ar price per hectare of nd arsd. The "Market App by Direct C 8 level 2

An anadysis of the Consumer Price Indaces provided by the Bureau of was and the of 4.06% was o be

matarial, therefore the carrying values of land assets has been adjusted to refiect this movemont

(1) (b) Bulidings (level 3)

The tak values of g were also by an MWPUlnM!M?MA Duo 10 the precominanty spediaiised
nature of local govermment assats, the bullding have boen an » Cost Appr Cost), an
methocology under AASE13

An analysis of the non-residential construction indeces provided by the Ox statistcs was and the af

§.13% was considered 10 be material, therefore the carrying values of buliding assets has boon adiusted 10 reflact fhis movament.

Under thes approach, the folowing process has been adopted.

*Where there is no market, the net curment valus of a7 ssset s the gross curent value iess 1o reflect the or expired
senioe potential of the asset. Publisnec/avaliable marke! da’e for recent projects, and/or published cost guides are utiised o determine the estmated
replacement cost (gruss value) of the ssset, for and p fees. This is considered a lavel 2 Input

*A cordition sssessment is appiled, wiich 1§ based on tactors such as the Bge of the assel, averall condion as noted by the vatuer durng inspection,
andior The

directy 10 the level of depreciation appled
*in g the ievel of for majar assots. they have been Into P whech) nxhibA difforent
patterns of (unefd liven) Resi ~mumh¢mm-nmnunnmnmnou~w:mm The

condition assessmont is apolied on & component besis

‘mnmmunmmnmmnmwmmnnmmmmumd
residual vase. usoful 0, and assor condition) were #iso required (levei 3)

(¥) (¢} Infrastructure assets (lovel 3)

The fair vatue of Counci'y assels was by valuer, Py Ltd, effective 1 Jenwary 2014, (exciuding the "Dther
Infrastructure” asset clasa)
Due ty the predominartly specaised nature of local g ansets, the ik Mnhnn on & Cost App!

(Neprociatad Cont), an under AASS13 The Cost Apprn level 3 Tre Cost
Approach is also the approsch used to far value Councl's bulidings. mummmumwmbnuumhm

In aadinon, for infra assuts, the of the assets and distances requined 1o travel NBve been teken INto accourt when coniderng unit rates.
Nue 1o the time nesded 1o travel 10 & partoutar work ¥, -wmt-nnmwn-wmummmnma-umm-mw
Muy of 10 sccount for overtime required 10 Wravel 10 and from the site. This rate has been d

(2013) and weh supplers of
QAO
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. of current cost
Roads
Current replscament cost
Roads are by the folowing: Class ( ). Type (for , Road Hierarchy (access, collector, antertal) and Seal Type (hitumen,
mnm-moﬁ-mmm-mmnmmmnmm and seal tis s0t, aamatic and
topogrephic factors are consistent across the network. All roads are Al rosd e then

nto
pavement and sesl (where appicadle) ummm.w-mnmwmw—mmuu—-wmm
labowr and matorials.

The cost is by then summed 10 give # total par segrnent. Cumently the formation and seal are calCulated per square metre
and the pavement is caloulsted using a cubic metre rate. The pavement depth is impiled from the roed y. with some fieid data on
unseated road pavament dapih being Uilised Rates are verified sgainst recent projects. consultation with Counci staff snd additional Council data from the

region,

kcumuhum

the lovel of roads were disaggregated ime sgr which @ifferert paterns of consumption
(Mumywm-mmm-mm-nmnu-mwnumw for wie. The
Is appled on a componont basis and was wsed 10 detennine remaining usoful ife

Estimated usetul bves and residusl viluses are discicsod In note 14

fridges

Current replacement cos!

Each bridge was P and valued o PO matenal type, 8 standard, locstion ang sile conditions.
\hpram-uuuh-ddnqmwwm dependant or dimensions, number of ceds and material type. Envionmenta! factors, iike sod
type, and were. 8cross the category

WW

he level of bridges were Cisaggregated o which different patterns of cansumption
(mumywmummm-mmnnmn—-mnnmm ilable The L ]
appled on & camponent basis and was used to determine remaining usefl Me.

Estimated usefl Ives and resdual values am desciosed in nole 14,

Drainage Infrastructure
Currant repiacement cos!

Ca-udﬁ'btm Coundl assumes that environmental factors such as ol type, ciimate and t0pograptly e Consisten! scross the network and that the
network is to the same and uses i amount of labour and materlals. Where draindge assets are located

v m 15 not possible mlot siz8 and type of coNsIuCtion matenal, together with curment and pisaned maintenance records are
used 10 determine the fair value. Cor On a simiar basss 10 roads.
Accumelated daprecietion
n g he level of , Grainage sssels were disaggregaled nto types of drainage assets which exhibied diffecent Lsehs lives.

Cstimates of expred secvice potentis) and remainicg usefis fves were determined on 2 straight Ine basis based on INdusiry standard practices and past
by

Estimatod useful /o5 and resiousl values are BSCOST in rote 14

cortified statements
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Water and pewerage

Currant replecement cost
The witer NG SOWerage Assats were segragated o active and passive assels; Passive assets ware not frthar componatsed and ConEstug of mains,
hydrants, manholes and water meters.

The active sssals of g and storage Jssets These assets were pe and velued
alfowances for complexity, size, hru:an-ndu‘hmu Thnonww“nlwmmnmmwmmim-mommk
house databsses

Unit rates apphod were Dased on

. Uit rate databasss

- Semdar recent project costs

. INCvoRs

. Rewinsor's rates for bullding and construction, and

«  Suppler’ quotations

As an example, n relaton {0 a lengt of pipe, the cost per melre | he sum of the raw cost of the pipe, the cost to delivor the ppe to sie, the cost 10 lay e
pipe. tha cost of excavation and backfiling and vanious overheads such as design, survey, and cor

Accumuiated depraciation

n sasels wers aither subject to & site oran to 1§ usefu life. Whore she
lr-ou:uummm:dod(u for active assels), the g Me was on the (s00 above)

Where site inspections wars not conducied (Le for passive assats], the G usetul life was 0N an age bass afler taking Into corsideration

current and planned maintenance records

Qthee intrastructure
Other infrastructure far values were by Council's eMtoctve 30 June 2016 and considered 1o apprommate the camying values at that date
An assessment was made at that ime to determing each component or asset's remaining usefd Be in order to

An ana'ys's of the non-residential construction indeces provided by the Q statistcs wue and he of
#.13% was consaorod 10 bo materal thercdore he carrying valses of cther INMASTUCHID 355ets Nas been acjusied to reflect this movemant

(i In fair value uning Inputs (level 3)

The changes in level 3 ssseds wih recurring falr vaiue measirements are delailed in Note 14 Praperty, Plant and Equipmert.
(iv) Valuation processes

Coundi’s valuation policies and procadures are outiined i the non-current assets poficy. Vaiuations a'e reviewed annualy takng Mo consceration an analysis
of movements in far value and other relevart information. Council's current policy for $he valuation of property. plant and equipment s set out in Nole 1.N.

QAO
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016 2018
Nots $ §
16 Intangible assets
Software
Gross camying valus at beginning of period 1,851 862 1,900 684
Transfers from capital WP 23,465 50,778
Ciusing gross carrying value - 1,975,127 1.8 062
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 128 568
Amortisation in the period 286,325
Ciosing balance 718,527 417,883
Net carrying value st end of financisl year 1,250 800 1,533,769
The has a finde life ot 10 yoars
Straight ine amortisation has been used with no residual value
17 Trade and other payables
Current
Creditors and accruals 6,443,308 4,464 345
Annual leave 1915012 2,020,308
Other trace and payaties 234 BB 815 465
8,583,008 7.100.118
Non-current
Securty deposat (capping of landfill) - SITA 1,068,442 940049
1,068 442 940,046
18 Borrowings
Current
Loans - O« ' Treasury C 342 959 140,437
Finance leases 19 17,720 18,414
360,679 156,851
Non-current
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporaton 6,516 487 1,857 904
Finance leases 19 189,508 207 226
i 6,706,993 2,008,130
Loans - Queensland Treasury
Balance on 1 July 2015 1,996 341 2,135,473
Loars rased 6,000,413
Principsl repayments (136,307) (137.132)
Book value at end of finencial period 6,45G 440 1,988 341

The QTC loan market value at the reporting date was §7.315935 This represents the value of the dedt If Council repaid &t at that date. As
It s the inention of Council to hoki the debt for its term, no provision Is requived 1o be made in these accounts.

No assets have besn pledged as security by Councl! for any

Al gs ace in 3A

all loans are

by the O

amounts and carmied at amortsed cost, interest being axpensed as it accrues  No interest has been

capitalised during the current period. Expected final repayment dates vary from 15 March 2024 to 15 June 2036. Thera have been no
defaults or breaches of the ioen agreemeant during the pericd

Princpal and interest repayments are made quanery In amears.
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2018 2018
Note s s
Working Capital Facility (overdraft) - Queensiand
Treasury
Balance at beginning of pariod
Loans raised
Interest charged
Repayrmnents _—
Book value at end of financial period
Council settied the Working Capital Facilty (overdraft) on 29 June 2015 as the di go date was from 31 D« 20140 30
June 2015 as per an 10 the Local G (De- Qo P ) 2013 section 37(3)

19 Finance leases
Tha minimum i8ase payments are payable as folows

Not Ister 1han one yesr 32.500 32,500
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 130,000 130,000
Later than 5 years 116,166 151,667
Total minimum kase payments 281,666 314,187
Less. Future finance charges (74 440) 90,527)
Leasa iabiity recognised in the financial statements 207,226 223 64D
Classfied as.
Current 17720 16414
Non-current 186,506 207 226
207,226 423,640
The present value of above minimum lease payments
are payable as follows.
Not iater than one year 17,720 16414
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 85,486 79,393
Later than 5 years 104,020 127,833
207 226 223840
The carrying value of the leasod asset is as follows:
Building 806,272 866618
20 Provisions
Current
Refuse restoration 5,500,000 1,000,000
Long service leave 326,285 338,529
5,829 285 1,339,529
Non-current
Refuse restoration 1486647 5,508,188
Long service inave 2,126,293 2,094 537
3 622 9e0 7,422,707
Detais of movemneras in provisions
Refuse restoration
Balance on 1 July 2015 6,908,169 6,084,667
n due to g of 88,478 168,013
n due 1o costs to restore 645459
Mareeba landfil
Balance at end of financial period 6,996 647 6,808,169

The oid Mareeba Landfil shte fs scheduled to be capped in the 2076/17 financisl year A contract has sready been awarded for this project
This 's the present value of the cost of g the refuse e 10 3 useable state &t the and of its usaful Me.
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2018 2018
Note $ $
Long service leave
Balance at beginning of period 2,354,087 2,100,885
Long service leave entitement arising 401,161 383 808
Long service entitiernant paid (209,650) (130.827)
Balance at end of financial perod 2455 578 2 354 067
21 Commitments for expenditure
Opersting leases
M Inase pay in relation to
operating leases ars as follows:
Within one year 1,137 2,925
1,137 2.928
Contractual commitments
Contractual commitments at end of financial period but
not gnised ir the ? are as
folaves.
Garvaga collection contract 2,181,085 3782585
Cleaning contractors 434 352 75417
2.615.457 4157 972
22 Contingent liabilities
Details and of of 9 are as follows
Local Government Mutual
Coundii is a member of the local governmant mutual iabiity soff. pool, LGM Q: In the svent of the pool being wound up
or & is unable to meet its dabts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accumuinted defict will be met by the Indvidual
pool n the same prop a8 thoir is to the total pool contributions In respact 1o any year that a deficll arises
As at 30 June 2018 the roperied an Surpius and ¢ is not anticipated any Sabiity wil arise
Local Government Workcare
The Ceurcilis 3 of the O locat g worker's P ¥ scheme, Local
Workcare Under this scheme the Council has provided an indemnity lowards a bank guarantee to cover bad debts which may reman
shoud the self licence be and there was funds le to cover -] Only the
Qu ‘workers y may call on any part of the guarantee should the abave clicumstances arise The
y amount pi by Shire Council as at 30 June 2018 in relation to the Local Bank G LY
$201.091
23 Superannuation
Councd 1o the Local Super Sch (Qi) (the ). The scheme & @ Mull-amployer Plan s
defined in the A St AASB118 yee Banefits
The Q Loca’ G Board. the trustee of the scheme, advised Ihat the local government suparanriuation
scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the C bt Industry (8 ) legt:

The scheme has three elements reforred o as:
The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund

The Regional Defined Berefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined beneft fund members working ‘or regional loca! goverriments,
and the Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF)
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The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASB 118 Council has no lability 1o of inferes! in the ABF other than e payment
of the statutory contributions as required Dy the Local Govemment Act 2009 .

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB118. Council is not able to account for the Regional DEF as a defined
benefit plan in accordance with AASB119 because the scheme is unable to account 1o Council for its proportionate share of the defined
benefit otligation, pian assets and costs. The funding policy adopted n respect of the Regional DBF is directed &t enswring that the banefits
» and arw fully funded as they fall due

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustoe can vary the rate of contributions from relevant local
government employers subject to advice fram the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting date, no changes had been made 1o prescribed
empioyer contributions which remain at 12 % of employee assats and there are no known requirements fo change the rate of contrbutions.

Any amount by which e2her func is over or under funded would only affect future benefts and contributions to the Regional DBF, and Is not
an asset o lability of Council. Accordingly there is no recognition In the financlal statements of any over or under fundng of the scheme

As at the reparting date, the assets of the scherne are sufficient to meet the vested benefits.

The most recent actuarial assessmant of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2015 The actuary indicated that “At the valustion date
of 1 Juty 2015, the net assets of the scheme exceeded the vested benafits and the scheme was in a satisfactory fnancial position as at the
valuaton date.

In the 2015 sctusral report the actusry has recommended no change 1o the employer contribution lsvels at the tme.

Under the Loca! Government Act 2008 the trustee of the scheme has the power to levy sdditional contributions on councils which have
employees in the Regional DBF when the actuary advises such additona’ contributions are paysble - normally when the assets of the DBF
are (nsufficlent to meet members benefis

There ate cumrently 89 entities contributing to the Regional DBF plan and any changes in contridution rates would apply equally to off 89
entities.  Mareeba Shire Council made jess than 4% of the total contributions 10 the plan in the 2015-16 financial year

The next will be a8 at 1 July 2018

Note s $

The amount of superannuation conrdridutions paid or
payable by Council to the scheme in this penod for the
benefit of employees was: ] 1,722,533 1,789,204

Operating lease Income
Council has leased fachities 10 independent operstorns
The mirvmum lease recepts am as follows:

Not ister than one year 378,368 408 557
One to five years 1,204 357 1,333,798
Later than five years 3,862,353 1,114,324

5,633,076 2,856,678

Trust funds

Trust funds heid for outside parties

Maonias coliected or held on behalf of cther entitios yet

o be paid out to or on behalf of those ertities 571,485 688,211
571,488 686,211

Council performs only a custodial roie in respect of these monies.  As these funds cannot be used by Council, they are not brought ‘o
account in these financial statements.
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28 Reconcillation of net result for the period to net cash inflow Ll from

10,768,910

8,839,401

3,837

8,943 338

48,100
(2,781,790)
(2.564.457)

(5,328, 148)

7,080,174

9763
1,386.279
1,088,853

8.810.737

23,994 B39

Net result 12,668 51(
Non-cash #ems
Depreciation and amartisabon 9419273
Finance costs 129,558
Finance income { 75)
8.8 57
g and & et ach
Net (profitjioss on disposal of non-current assets 327,782
Capital grants and contributions (6.343.253)
Donated assets (2,185,151
(8,180,752
Changes in operating assets and labiifies
(ncrease) decrease n recenvables 4,718,344
(ncreaseNdecrease in inventory 920,247
Increasef/(decrease) in payables 1.6 “
Ircreasei{decrease) in prowsions 101.5
7,288 387
Net cash inflow from cperating activities 20.983.602 _
Page 32
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7 Financial Instruments
Msroeba Shire Councl has exposuce to the following risks arising from financial Instruments.
- credit risk
- liquidity risk
market nsk

This note provides ir (both 10 ssaist usery avalusle the sigr of financial to Courcil's
financial position and financial performance, mmmmwdmﬂmm:ummmm

Financial risk management

Mareede Shire Councll is for the e sight of the risk framy fogother with developing and monlioning risk
management policies.

Council spproves policies for overad nsk o s well as for ging credit, hquidity and market risk

Councif's risk polices are 1o identfy and analyse the risks faced. 10 sat appropnato imits end cortra’s and to monitor thase nsks

and adherence agains! limis. Council aims lo manage volatilty lo minimise potential adverse eflects on the financial performancs of Councl
Mareebs Shire Counct does not enter into desivatives

Credit risk
Cwmlhwdwm'nMM-wAlmhhhMb These cbliga arse Y
from Counci's and
wnmmuwmnmvmdmn y abilty to meet pay The camying amount of financiel
assets the credit

in financial are required to be made with O Treasury C (QTC) or similar state/ commonwealth bodies o

financal insutions n Australia, « ine with the requiements of the Statutory Bodles Financial Amengemants Act 1962
No colisteral is hoid as security relating o te financiel assets held by Maresba Shire Counci

Rater to Notes 10,11 and 12 for Councils tnancial assets, which Council's 10 credit sk

Ageing of rade and other sundry receivabies, excluding rates deblors and prepayments, and the amount of any impairment is disciosed in the folowing

016 2018
s ]

Not past due 2417 8,924 827
Past due 31-60 days 10,044 477253
Past due 81-90 days 10,890 1.308
More than 90 days 36,393 N0.715
Impaired (1.087)
Total 1.278.976 434,150
Liquidity riak
Liquiany risk I the rigk that Counci! wil encounter dificulty in meeting the oblgations associated with s fnancial kabilties ta are settiod by deivenng cash
o another fnancisl asset

Waresba Shire Councll is expased 1o liquidity risk $rough its nommal course of busness and through its boowings Wwith the Quaensiand Treasury
Carporation for capital works or borrowings fom other financial nstitutions.

Council manages s exposure (o liquidity risk by mainiaining # cash deposit to cater for unexpected volabity in cash flows

The foliowing table sets out the Iguidity risk in relation to financial labiities held by Councl. It he -] end
interest) of inancal llabites at the end of the reparIng perod, excluding the impact of netting agreements:

AQ
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0to 1 year 1to 8 yoars Over § yoars Total Carrying
contractual  smount
cash flows
L 5 5 § 5
2016
Trado and other payables 5,706,427 - 6,706,427 5,706 427
Loans - QTC 608,812 2,480,000 6,187,536 $,266,347 0,850,448
Financa loases 32 600 130,000 119,168 261,868 207,220
8,347,740 2,580,000 0,308,701 15244440 12773096
0to 1 year 1108 yoars Over 5§ yoars Total Carrying
contractual  amount
cash flows
$ s s ) . -
2018
Trade and other payables 5079810 5,079,810 5079810
Loans - QTC 274 838 1.008 363 1441 344 2015535 1,968 341
Finance isases 2,500 130.000 151,887 314,167 223840
5387 148 1,229,353 1,563,011 8200512  7.301,791
Tha outflows n the above table are not 10 ocour sigr earfier of for sig y different amounts than indicated in the table
Market risk

Marke! risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as inlerest rdes. wil affect Council's income of the vake of its hokdings of financial instruments:
interest rate risk

Maresba Shirs Councl is exposed % interest rate rsk through investmants and borrowings with QTC and other financial instiutions

Council has acoess 10 8 mix of veriable and fixed rate funding options ifvough QTC so that inesest rate risk exposure can be minknised

Falr value

The far value of irade and ofher and o o the value of tho original ansacton, less any allowance for

i,

The far value of boirowings with QTC is based on the marke! vadue of debt oulstanding. The market value of a dobt obigation & the dscounted valkue of
future cash flows based on prevalling market rales and represents the amount roqured 10 be repaid f this was 10 occur 8t balance date. The market vaive of
dabt is provided by QTC and Is disciosad in Note 18.

QTG applies a book rale spproach In the managemant of debt ana interest rate rsk, o Winit the IMpact of marke! value movements 1o chents’ cost of
funding. The book value represents the canying vaiue based on smortised cost using the effoctive inferest method,
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28 National Competition Policy

Business activities to which the code of competitive conduct Is applied
The Mareeba Shire Council applies the competiive code of conduct to (he following activities:

Water services
Sewse ape services
Waste management
Laboratory services
Buiding services

This requires the application of full cost pricing. identifying the cost of community service obligations (CSO) and
and dvantages of public within that activey

g the 9

The CSO vaiue is determined by Council, and represents an activities cosi(s) which would not be incured if the
primary cbjective of the activities was 1o make 8 pro‘t. Council provides funding from general revenue to the

business activity to cover the cost of providing y sonvioss o costs deemed 10 be CSO by
Council
The g activity am for subject to the competitive code of conduct:
Water Seweruge Waste Lanaratory Buliong
services services management sarvices services
—
2018 2016 2016 2016 2016
{$'000) {$000) ($'000) {$000) ($'000)
Revenue for services provided 1o the Council 300 38 - - -
Revenue for services provided (o external clients 4818 43854 5,846 128 136
Community service odligations - 119 . 2 4
518 45N 5848 129 140
Less  Expenditure 4 636 2,737 4,766 | 207 161
Surplus/(defictt) 423 1,774 1.080 | (78) (21)
[+ of CSO p o 4 activities:
Only Councifs 9o and buiding includm any community service cbligatons.
= Aciivities CS0 descrption Not cost
{$000)
Sewerage For providing froe services to public areas and| 118
supponting small schames
Buiding Cestification For providing the same fee across the shire 4
regardiess of distance travaled from main
office
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Management Certificate

For the year ended 30 June 2016

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 177 of the Local Govemment Regulation 2012
(the Regulation) anc other prescrided requirements

In sccordance with section 212(85) of the Regulation we cortity that

@ the prescribed requirements of the Loce/ Government Act 2000 and Loca! it Re 2012 for the ment and keeping
of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(@) the general purpose financal statements, as set out on pages 1 1o 35, presant a true and fair view, in accordance with Australian
the Council's transactions for the financial penod and financal posilion at the end of the period

268

Chief Executive Officar
Peter Franks
oee@% 110 1206 pae OS V0, W
QA0
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Mayor of Mareeba Shire Council

Report on the Financial Report

1 have audited the accompanying financial report of Mareeba Shire Council, which comprises
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to
the financial statements including significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council's Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives & true and fair
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibility also includes such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary lo enable the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due lo fraud or
error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit
was conducted in accordance with the Audifor-General of Queensiand Auditing Standards,
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
repori, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control,
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit
also includes evaluating the approprialeness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion,
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Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensiand public sector entities
and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and
property and can report lo Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are
significant

Opinion
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009 —
(a) { have received all the information and explanations which | have required; and

(b) in my opinion -
(i) the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

() the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed
accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of Mareeba
Shire Council for the financial year 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 and of the financial
position as at the end of that year.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit
does nol provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperfinked to or from the
financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concemed with the inherent risks
arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised o refer to the printed copy
of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented

Information.
( 27
C (J Jf"oﬁ =
C G STRICKLAND CA Queensland Audit Office
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensiand) Brisbane
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M of F S Y How the messuro & GalCLated Al - Target
Counct
Council's performance st 30 June 2016 aganst key financial ratics and targets.
Operating suplus ratio Net result (exciuding capital items) ~ Sctwoan 3%
divided by total operating revenue nd I
(exciuding capital items)
Asset sustanability ratio Caphtal expenditure on the 124% greatss thar
of assots ( o
divided by depreciation expense
Net financial kabilities ratio Total kabilties less current assets 4TH POt greter
divided by totw operating revenus an 00%
(excludng capial fems)
Note 1 - Basis of Preparation
The cumrent year fi sa lpecld prepared in with the of the Local
Government Regulation 2012 and the Fmandu Manag ) G 2013. The amounts used to caiculate the three reporied
measures are prepared on an acorual basis .ndvedrmmannal audlm general purpose financial staternents for the year ended 30 June
2016
Certificate of Accuracy
For the yoar ended 30 June 2016
[This current-year fina B Y has been prep: pursuant to Section 178 of the Loca/

2012 (the

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial sustainability statement

has bean accurately calculated
1 Wl;aanmls-_h o
Potar Franks
o 0d_ 10 2ot owe 05 1O, Vo
certified statements
Page 91

L\ o B

Page 97



Mareeba

SHIRE COUNCIL
Mareeba Shire Council - Agenda Wednesday 26 October 2016

Mareeba ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

SHIRE COUNCIL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Mayor of Mareeba Shire Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

| have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainability statement, which is a
special purpose financial report of Mareeba Shire Counc